Indiana Election Commission

Minutes
August 18, 2023

Members Present: Zachary Klutz, Proxy for Paul Okeson, Chairman and Member of the
Indiana Election Commission (“Commission™); Suzannah Wilson Overholt, Vice Chair of the
Commission; Michael Claytor, Proxy for Karen Celestino-Horseman, member; Connie Lawson,
Proxy for Litany A. Pyle, Member.

Members Absent: Karen Celestino-Horseman; Paul Okeson; Litany A. Pyle.

Staff Attending: J. Bradley King, Co-Director, Indiana Election Division of the Office of the
Secretary of State (Election Division); Angela M. Nussmeyer, Co-Director of the Election
Division; Matthew Kochevar, Co-General Counsel of the Election Division; Valerie Warycha,

Co-General Counsel of the Election Division.

Others Attending: Ms. Janet Buchanan; Mr. Marc Chatot; Ms. Cindy Cotton; Ms. Rochelle
Fox; Dr. Chad Kinsella; Mr. D. Edward Linn; Mr. Mark Manganaro; Ms. Jennifer Stamm.

1. Call to Order:

The Chair called the August 18, 2023 meeting of the Commission to order at 1:00 p.m.
EDT in the Indiana Government Center South Conference Room A, 402 West
Washington Street, Indianapolis.

2. Transaction of Commission Business:

The Commission proceeded to transact the business set forth in the Transcript of
Proceedings for this meeting prepared by Maria W. Collier, RPR, CRR, of Stewart
Richardson and Associates, which is incorporated by reference into these minutes.
The Commission corrects the following scrivener’s error in the document:

Page 38, line 5, replace “race” with ‘rare”.

The Commission adjourned its meeting at 1:53 p.m. EDT.
Respectfully submitted,

J. Bradley King

Co-Director Co-Director
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CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Meeting of the Indiana
El ection Conmi ssion is called to order. For
pur poses of the record, | will note the foll ow ng
menbers of the Conm ssion are present: Mself,
Zach Klutz, designated as proxy for Chairman Paul
Ckeson; Vice Chai rman Suzannah W1l son Overholt to
nmy left; Mchael Caytor, to ny left, designated as
proxy for Comm ssion Menber Karen Cel esti no-
Horseman; and to ny right, the honorable Connie
Lawson, designated as proxy for Conmm ssion Menber
Li tany Pyl e.

Al so in attendance are |ndiana El ection
Division staff: Co-Director Brad King and
Co-Director Angi e Nussneyer, Co-CGeneral Counsels
Mat t hew Kochevar and Val eri e Warycha.

Qur court reporter today is Maria W Collier
from Stewart R chardson Deposition Services.

Just a housekeeping item | want to advise the
Comm ssi on nenbers and those present that we w |
need to plan to stop our Conm ssion business no
| ater than 2:30 p.m today.

Next item on the agenda is docunentation of
conpliance with OQpen Door Law. | would request the
co-directors confirmthat the Comm ssion neeting

has been properly noticed as required by Open Door
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Law.

MR, KING M. Chairman, on behalf of nyself
and Co-Director Nussneyer, we certify that notice
of this neeting was properly given in accordance
with I ndiana' s OQpen Door Law.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Thank you, Brad.

The next itemon the agenda is the approval of
our August 11, 2023, Conmmi ssion mnutes. |
recogni ze the co-directors to present the m nutes
of the August 11, 2023, neeti ng.

MR. KING M. Chairman, nenbers of the
Comm ssi on, on behalf of nyself and Co-Di rector
Nussneyer, we have reviewed the m nutes and
recommend themto the Conmm ssion for your approval.

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ: Accept a notion to approve.

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: So noved.

M5. LAWSON: 1'Il second.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Hearing a second, all in
favor say "Aye."

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: Aye.

MR CLAYTOR  Aye.

MS. LAWSON:.  Aye.

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ: Opposed.

The "ayes" have it and the notion to approve

m nutes i s adopt ed.
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| s there consent fromthe Conmm ssion nenbers
for the Election Division staff to use our
signature stanps for any docunents approved by the
Comm ssi on today?

VI CE CHAI RMVAN OVERHOLT: Consent.

MR CLAYTOR  Consent.

M5. LAWBON: Consent.

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ: Ckay. Next itemon the
agenda is the adoption of canpaign finance orders.
| recognize the co-directors to present the
canpai gn finance orders 2023-200 through 421
reflecting the actions taken by the Comm ssion at
t he August 11, 2023, neeting.

MR. KING M. Chairman, nenbers of the
Comm ssion, on behalf of nyself and Co-Director
Nussneyer, with thanks for our very diligent
canpai gn finance staff nenbers, Abbey Tayl or and
M chel | e Thonpson, who prepared these orders in the
week interval since the neeting at which the
Comm ssion made its findings, we present these to
you and recomend them for your approval.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Thank you.

|s there a notion to adopt canpai gn finance
orders as presented?

MR CLAYTOR: So noved.
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M5. LAWSON:  Second.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Hearing a notion and a
second, is there any discussion?

Hearing none, all in favor say "Aye."

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: Aye.

MR. CLAYTOR  Aye.

MS. LAWSON:  Aye.

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ: Opposed "Nay. "

The notion carries.

The next itemon the agenda is the
adm ni stration of oath. Any person who plans to
testify at today's neeting on any matter, please
stand if you're able to and respond "I do" upon the
reading of the oath. And | recognize Mitthew
Kochevar to adm ni ster the oath.

MR. KOCHEVAR: Pl ease rai se your right hand.
Pl ease say "I do" after recitation of the oath.

Do you solemly swear or affirm under the
penalties of perjury, that the testinony you are
about to give to the Indiana Election Conm ssion is
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth? Please say "I do."

ALL: | do.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Ckay. The next item on our

agenda is consideration of applications for
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recertification of previously certified voting
systens. Before we nove to formally consider the
applications for approval of new versions of
previously certified voting systens and engi neeri ng
change orders currently on our agenda today, |
woul d state for the record the Comm ssion wl|

of fer the opportunity for public comrent regarding
each application for certification of a new version
of the previously certified voting systens or

engi neeri ng change orders that will be considered
by our Conm ssion today.

| woul d ask any person naking a comment to
assi st our court reporter by identifying thensel ves
and spelling their nanmes for the record, and |
rem nd everyone that no one shoul d be speaking at
the sane tine as anot her person who has al ready
been recogni zed on the fl oor.

Due to our tinme constraints today, | would
al so request that comrents or presentations be kept
to 5 mnutes or |ess.

Further, any person who w shes to present
docunents or other evidence to the Conm ssion nust
provide that material to Valerie Warycha, who is
sitting to ny right, to be preserved for the

record, unless you have already submtted those to
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t he Conmi ssi on.

Finally, in terns of procedure, the public
wi |l have an opportunity to offer coments
follow ng the presentation of each itemby the
Voting Systens Techni cal Oversight Program VSTOP,
and their representatives.

Wth that, let's nove to our first election
systemcertification, and that is the certification
of Election Systens & Software optical scan ball ot
card voting system EVS 6. 3.0.0.

| now recogni ze the VSTOP staff to present its
report with respect to this systemand to confirm
that this voting system has passed the testing
conducted by VSTOP and all testing | aboratories,
and confirmthat the systemconplies with |Indiana
|l aw and with | EC Advi sory Opinion 2022-08, if
appl i cabl e.

Before we begin with the report, | would ask
t hat each person here on behalf of VSTOP pl ease
I ntroduce thensel ves.

MR, CHATOT: Thank you, Comm ssioner. M nane
Is Marc Chatot, Ma-r-c, Gh-a-t-o-t. | amthe
interimproject manager, program nanager of VSTCOP
and the election systemcertification specialist.

DR. KINSELLA: M/ nane is Chad Kinsella,




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

Page 10

co-director of VSTOP.

MR, CHATOT: | will begin by reading our
recommendation for EVS 6.3.0.0. The EVS 6.3.0.0 is
a paper-based end-to-end el ecti on managenent
system or EMS, that supports jurisdictions'
el ection needs by creating and nmai ntai ning a
central election database, formatting and printing
bal | ot s, programm ng el ecti on equi pnent, and
collecting and reporting results. This system was
certified by the U S. Election Assistance
Comm ssi on on Novenber 17, 2022, and is conpliant
with the Voluntary Voting System Cui del i nes,

WSG 1. 0. Changes and nmj or features being

I ntroduced by this voting systemare the DS300 poll
pl ace scanner and tabul ator, the DS950 precinct
scanner, and several upgrades to security.

The DS950 wi I | eventually replace the DS850 as
internal parts for the DS850 go end-of-life in
their production cycle. The DS950 will use all new
internal parts allowing for greater performance and
| ongevity. A security and shipping inprovenent for
the DS950 is flush security tag recesses on the
cabi net, preventing snags and i nadvertent security
seal breaks during travel. EVS 6.3.0.0 introduces

standard firmnvare for all devices and a new
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Linux OS for the DS200. An upgraded suite of flash
drives is used in EVS 6.3.0.0, including the
I ntroduction of Yubi Keys, a physical two-factor
aut hentication nethod required to access the EMS.
Findings and limtations: The DS200 and DS300
scanners are produced w thout nodem or network
har dware and are i ncapabl e of connecting to the
Internet. DS300 tabul ators provide inprovenents to
scanning and printing speeds conpared to the DS200.
El ectionWare is individually Iicensed and can be
configured to only support equipnent that is
approved for use in Indiana. EVS 6.3.0.0
I ntroduces the Yubi Key, a physical two-factor
aut hentication for accessing the EM5S, adding
anot her | ayer of security.
There are no changes to accessibility in the
EVS 6.3.0.0 systemfrom previously certified
versions. ES&S denonstrated their EMS s
adj udi cation capability to the VSTOP team duri ng
field-testing. VSTOP determ ned the adjudication
capabilities conformw th Indiana | aw under
| C 3-11-15-13.8. ES&S denonstrated their EMS' s
adj udi cation capability to the VSTOP team duri ng
field-testing. VSTOP determ ned the adjudication

capabilities conformw th Indiana | aw under
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| C 3-11-15-13. 8.

VSTOP field test: Before the VSTOP field
test, VSTOP reviewed the VSTL reports submtted by
Pro V&/. This voting system underwent
field-testing at Ball State University from
May 15th through the 18th of 2023 by the VSTOP
team The field test included software hash
verification of all required el enents of the
| ndi ana statutes regarding voting systens as wel |
as an ADA conpliance evaluation. Mck el ections,

i ncl udi ng the | ED-approved test case scenarios for
straight party voting, were conducted as part of
the field test for this voting system

Recomendation: On the basis of VSTOP' s
review and evaluation, we find that the voting
systemreferenced herein, and with the Scope of
Certification, neets all the requirenents of the
| ndi ana Code for use in the state of Indiana. This
finding includes conpliance wwth |egal requirenents
for voters with disabilities. VSTOP reconmends
approval of EVS 6.3.0.0.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Thank you.

For purposes of just commencing the Conm ssion
di scussion on this matter, | nove to approve the

application submtted for approval of this el ection
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systemas conplying with Indiana | aw and | ndi ana
El ecti on Comm ssion Advisory Opinion 2022-08, as
appl i cabl e.

|s there a second?

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHOLT:  Second.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Al in favor.

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: Aye.

MR CLAYTOR  Aye.

M5. LAWSON:  Aye.

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHOLT: That's just for
di scussion, right?

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Right. This is for purposes
of di scussi on.

So now we'll ask if there's any representative
fromthe vendor that would like to talk follow ng
the report.

MR. MANGANARO My nane is Mark Manganar o,

M a-n-g-a-n-a-r-o. |'mthe Indiana state
certification manager. | just basically --

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Sir, can you just take the
oath real quick for us.

MR. MANGANARO Ch, sure.

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Thanks.

MR. KOCHEVAR: Just raise your right hand.

Say "I do" after recitation of the oath.
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Do you solemly swear or affirmthat the
testinony you are about to give to the Indiana
El ection Conm ssion is the truth, the whole truth,
and nothing but the truth? Please say "I do."

MR. MANGANARG | do.

MR, KOCHEVAR: Thank you.

MR. MANGANARO  And, again, Mark Manganaro
with El ection Systens & Software. Just wanted to
thank the VSTOP team | know they had quite a few
systemtesting to do, poll books, ECOs. Marc did
an outstanding job getting the certification done
inatinly manner. |'mhere today if you guys
have any other questions regarding the systemthat
VSTOP can't address. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Thank you.

At this time I'll recognize anyone fromthe
public that would |Iike to speak.

MR LINN:. 1'd |like to speak.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: W just need you to take the

oath, sir.
MR. LINN. Sure.
MR, KOCHEVAR: |'mgoing to ask, through the

Chair, if there's anyone else in the audi ence who
al so has any inclination to speak, it would be

better to have you sworn right now so we don't have
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to keep pausing. So if you're thinking about
speaking at any point, if you want to stand up and
rai se your right hand.

Sir, raise your right hand as well. Say "I
do" after recitation of the oath.

Do you solemly swear or affirm under the
penalties of perjury, that the testinony you are
about to give to the Indiana El ection Conm ssion is
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth? Please say "I do."

ALL: | do.

MR. KOCHEVAR: Thank you.

MR. LINN: | just have several points |I'd |like
to make.

THE REPORTER: Sir, could you state your nane
and spell it for nme, please.

MR LINN. Yes. M nane is D. Edward,
E-d-wa-r-d, Linn, L-i-n-n, and | just have several
remarks |1'd |like to nmake.

| don't know if all these changes to the DS200
scanner were addressed, but this is going back
several years ago, and this is a web article from
VentureBeat, "Optical scanning machi nes are
susceptible to mscounting U S. voter ballots."

And | ooking at this, there's several things that
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this device does under the cover of darkness, and |
don't think that's a good thing.

We want transparent elections. And | know you
guys at Ball State think you do a really good j ob,
and you probably do the best job you possibly can,
and |'mnot refuting anything you just said. All
|'"msaying is, these are bl ack boxes, and they run
by al gorithnms, and al gorithns can be mani pul at ed.
And t hey can be nmani pul ated by sonebody com ng in
and putting a device into the machi ne and hacki ng
t he machi ne.

| f you think that's not possible, we just had
a nunber of different hacks to our system | just
had ny information hacked at the very secure
banki ng system and they gave ne two free years of
credit nonitoring. So this has happened to ne when
| was at Purdue University. It was hacked; ny
soci al security and personal information was
hacked. So people that say these are the nost
secure elections in history, all that is bunk, in
my opinion. Ckay?

Now, can | give you irrefutable evidence of
that? No. But what |I'msaying is the citizens are
not very pleased wwth the way the elections are

being done. W'd |like to go back to paper ballots
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the way they used to be done. W'd like to have

t hese docunents seal ed, not scanned, because
scanni ng these docunents, |ike they' ve shown in
Ceorgia, they can be deleted. So we want the real
ballots. W don't want virtual ballots. W want
real ballots, and we want ballots that are scanned
by human eyes, not by nmachines that can be rigged
or al gorithns changed under the cover of darkness
to give fraudul ent results.

You may say, well, that's not possible, but it
I s possi ble because these people say it is.
Anytinme you have a conputer, it can be hacked.
Anytime you have a conputer, the algorithns can be
changed. That's a fact. In ny opinion, there's no
guestion. Ckay?

And so |I've got several docunents here I'd
like to give you. One is the VentureBeat article
having to do with the fact that these are
susceptible in this county. And | don't know if
all these changes have been done on the nmachi ne,
but there is one thing that's really, to ne, very
concerning, and that is the fact that they said
that these nachines aren't capabl e of being hacked
to the point where an individual would attain

adm ni strative control over the machi ne, which
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means they can change anything. They can change
anyt hing on the nmachi ne software-w se, what have
you. They can delete votes. They can do whatever
t hey want.

Now, here, in fact, there's a docunentation
from Georgia where it says that a total of
1.7 mllion imges of the ballots were del eted.
And so | put that in the record as well.
1.7 mllion ballot imges were destroyed.

You say, well, they can just go and take a
| ook at the real ballots. WIlIl, the thing about it
Is, in Georgia they said no, you can't do that,
that's private information. And we've had that
situati on happen here in Indiana where we've had
voter integrity groups saying we want to take a
| ook at the cast vote records. Not only were they
stopped at the election board |evel, they were al so
stopped at the state |legislature |evel because they
said these cast vote records were confidential
information. |In fact, other states find that
they're not --

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ:  You have 30 seconds.

MR. LINN: -- because there's no identifying
information in those cast vote records that would

make them confidential. [It's a hoax, in ny
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opinion, to do that.

W need transparent elections. W don't need
el ections done under the cover of darkness. W
don't need el ections done under proprietary
software. We want things done in the open, under
the clear transparent daylight, not under the cover
of darknesses into a black box.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Thank you, sir.

MR LINN:. Thank you. | yield ny tine,

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Anyone el se to speak on this?

Yes, ma'am Pl ease state your nane.

M5. STAMM M/ nane is Jennifer Stamm
St-a-mm like Mary. Thank you for the
opportunity. | didn't know | was going to be here.
| just found out about the neeting earlier today.
| don't knowif I'lIl be as eloquent as the
gent| eman before nme, so | appreciate your tine.

| amsinply here just as a representative of a
| ot of people that are like nyself, that are very

di strusting of how we've been doing it, the

machines. | too want paper ballots. | too see
that there is a pathway to it. | too see that it
woul d take -- we even know how many vol unteers it
woul d take to actually get that done. | am part of

| ndi ana First Action group. The canvassing that
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was done through the voter rolls that we obtained
t hrough our own Secretary of State reveal ed sone
very astoni shing and very disturbing information
about the history of our elections. Particularly
this one was information fromthe 2020 el ecti on.

| don't knowif I'mallowed to ask a questi on,
but I wll, because it seens |ike absolute comon
sense that we would know, with the technol ogy that
we have today, that it is very easily hackable. W
see it all the tinme in the news. |If you actually
| ook on a search engine that's outside of Googl e,
you w Il find all kinds of information that
actually refutes what a |lot of the experts on the
television are telling us. W're not stupid. W
know. And we the people are kind of tired of not
feeling like we're being heard by the peopl e that
are in the seats maki ng these decisions, so | say
this respectfully.

Do any of you people believe -- and | say this
respectfully -- that our systens can be hacked,
that there is an opportunity for nefarious
activities and that they're not absolutely as safe
and sound as we've been prom sed over the years?
Because | know that's not true, and | would hate to

believe that |'msitting here in a roonful of
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prof essionals that would actually say no, you're
wrong, they are safe and secure, there's absolutely
no way that anything can happen to any of your
votes. Because, to ne, that's just an ignorant
answer, and | don't nean any disrespect by it.

But | just do want to say that | represent a
| ot of people. There are thousands and thousands
and thousands and t housands of people that feel
like I do but have no idea where the neetings are,
how to express an opinion. |'mnot as el oquent as
| would like to be. There was a | ot of code.
There was a lot of .06.3.0 and a | ot of acronyns
and things that probably are just a little bit over
ny head as far as that. But one thing | will say I
do understand is that systens are hackable. And
what we saw in the 2020 elections, the truth is out
there. It's being very nmuch hid fromus by
mai nstream nedi a, and we all know that. Anybody
Wi th any conmopn sense recognizes that. They were
not safe and secure, they are not safe and secure,
and paper ballots is what we want.

So | just wanted you all to hear that | am one
opi ni on of many. \Whether that goes anywhere or
not, | just wanted to be heard, and | thank you for

your tine.
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CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Thank you.

M5. STAMM  Thank you.

M5. COTTON:. H there. M nane is C ndy
Cotton, Gi-n-d-y, CGo-t-t-o-n, as in Nancy. | do
have a handout for everybody. GCkay? Just forgive
me. |'ve got to read fromthe bottomof it.
tried -- it's the very |ast paragraph. | got very
fortunate. | amin a graduate study programin the
state of |ndiana, phenonenal to our city. | just
happened to end this session. So up at the top is
your reference. Al of that information is the
guys that are super smart that wote the textbook.
It just so happened to be in ny information systens
class, so | just happened to take note of it.

It starts out with an inpossibility of
100 percent security, because these guys wote
t ext books, they put sone tine and effort. Let's go
to the last paragraph. Back in '95 -- so it's not
a newthing -- L. Dain Gary, fornmer manager of the
U.S. Conputer Energency Response Team CERT, in
Pittsburgh, appeared on an episode of 60 M nutes
and let the public in on an unpleasant... You
cannot nake a conputer secure. You can reduce the
ri sk, but you can't guarantee the security.

Because of the futility of seeking 100 percent
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security, many conpani es take out insurance
policies to mtigate the financial inpacts of a
breach. So if it were secure, you wouldn't be
getting an insurance policy. It is inportant to
al so consider the so-called Poul sen's | aw t hat
states that information is secure when it costs
nore to get it than it's worth. The role of
managenent is to work with IT functions to nmake it
harder to break in than it is worth,

Listen, we all have stupendous intentions, but
security costs, and governnents across the country,
you guys are doing the absolute best you can, but
It costs hundreds of mllions of dollars. You' ve
got nultinational conpanies worth trillions that
cannot secure their systens.

Finally, | want you guys to also have this
fromthe sane textbook. Forgive ne. | don't have
t he exact page on these, but |I can get them \Wile
there's not been any evidence of hacking -- so back
in 2017, they did a little kind of experinent.
Wil e there's not been any evidence of hackers
tanpering with voting results in the United States,
attendees at a 2017 bl ack hat hacker -- so a bl ack
hat, there's all kind of terns; they get paid to

kind of try to hack into sonething; they're just
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good fol ks with conputers -- conference was invited
to try to break into 30 voting machi nes
representing several types in popular use in the
2016 election. The result of the conpetition was
not encouragi ng, as the hackers broke into all the
machi nes in under two hours. One nmachi ne had an
unpat ched Wndows XP vul nerability that had been
known for 14 years. Governnental agencies in the
U.S. need to catch up on voting security.

Guys, we all have phenonenal intentions. |
don't deny that. | know you guys want what we
want. |It's extrenely expensive. You've got to
have techni cal people that you pay a ton of noney,
and every year it will go up and up and up. If we
have a system perhaps out there and they are
i nplementing in the United States everywhere --
It's happening every day as the days tick by --
that can save you guys noney and do just as good a
job, if not better, let's consider it. |'mnot
saying -- you can't stop everything in a second and
change everything in a second. That's not what |I'm
asking. |'masking you to think about it, ponder
it, and maybe, as the days go by, we can start
moving in that direction. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Thank you.
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Any further conment on this matter for this

voting systen?

MR. KOCHEVAR: | have to swear you in. Just
rai se your right hand. Say "I do" after recitation
of the oath.

Do you solemly swear or affirm under the
penalties of perjury, that the testinony you are
about to give to the Indiana El ection Conm ssion is

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

truth?
M5. FOX: So help ne God, | affirm
MR. KOCHEVAR: Thank you.
M5. FOX: You want nme to sign in?
M5. WARYCHA: Yes, please.
M5. FOX:. M nane is Rochelle Fox, and | --

THE REPORTER: Coul d you spell it, please.

M5. FOXX R-0-c-h-e-l-l-e, F-0-x. And | know
these ladies, and | know exactly what they're
tal king about. It kind of upset nme when I got the
noti ce about the optical scan mainly because |
don't know where that scan ends up. | know where
It begins, but | have no idea of where it's going.

And the reason why |I'msaying that is because
| am one of the victins of Konnech. | don't know

I f you know about Konnech or not. It's -- what is
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1t? It works with elections, and it's out -- it
comes from California, and they went all around the
country to -- | don't know -- connect sonehow. But
what they did do without telling us was they took
our private information. They took our private
information in three different counties here in

| ndiana for the poll workers. Wen | registered

i nnocently to work as a poll worker, they were
taking nmy information, which went from Konnech to
California to China.

So if they can do that with ne typing ny
information in, | can't even begin to inagi ne what
they'd do wwth an eye scan. They already have ny
information. | don't know how to get it back.
would like to do a class-action suit wth other

peopl e and sue Konnech, but it won't get ny

information returned to ne. It's out there. |[|'ve
gotten phone calls -- and this is the honest to God
truth -- fromplaces on the other side of the

world. They don't talk to nme. They just call ne.
|"ve gotten phone calls with Chinese or sone kind
of witing on the nunber. Just crazy. And | don't
know who is trying to conmunicate with ne, if
they're listening in on ne or what. Wuld you all

like to live like that, know ng that sone stranger
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out there has all your personal infornmation?

You have put your social security nunber in
there when you sign up to be a poll worker, so the
social security nunber tells you everything. So
t hey know everything about ne. | walk around every
day wondering who is looking at ne. That's not a
good way to be free in a country that gives us the
right to have our liberty. | nean, it's just
crazy. And | know, and these |adies know too, we
know it was done, what, in Johnson County, Lake
County, and Marion County.

MR, LINN:. Allen County as well.

M5. FOX: Yeah. They chose the | argest
counties so they could -- | don't know what they
want with our information, but | know they do have
it. And that's why I will never work the polls
again. | wll volunteer and be a watcher, but |I'm
never wor king them again, because this was done in
2020. | didn't find out until this year, and |

wor ked the 2022 el ection as a poll worker. So can

you imagine that? | nean, | don't feel confortable
with that.
And, like | said, you' re scanning ny eye,

whi ch neans that you're getting ny nedical

information. You al ready have enough from Konnech,
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so what nore can you ask fromnme? |'mjust one
person here in this United States, but who knows
how nmuch that ended up connecting ne to other
people, to other people in other places that | go
and things that I do. | just so happen to be, like
sone of the people here, a delegate in Marion
County. So that's not a safe place to be, and |
don't trust using nmuch of the Internet anynore
because of that.

Whereas, in contrast to that, a paper ball ot
like we're really pushing is what? It has a
watermark on it. You verify your IDin front of a
person with your signature, and, | nean, they can
see your face. Unless you're a clone, they know
exactly who you are. And then you sit down at the
end of the day |like we've done -- that's another
thing | thought about too. D d you guys know that,
in order to work the polls, you have to be there at
4:30 in the norning? D d you know you get off at,
like, 8:00 at night? That's one day, which is the
| ongest day of the year for ne really, and at the
end of the day, there's no guarantee that what
we' ve done has been right because we don't know
whi ch ballots are correct and which aren't because

t hey al ways have -- what do you call it? --
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provi si onal ball ots.

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  You have 30 seconds,
Ms. Fox.

M5. FOX: Ckay. I'msorry. | didn't know
about the time limt.

But anyway, | aminpeding -- not inpeding. |
just ask that you pl ease reconsider what you're
t hi nking about. W all |ove our privacy, and once
we start scanning stuff across the Internet, it's
bad enough with the data --

(Ti mer)

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Thank you.

M5. FOX: You're wel cone.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Any further comment?

MR LINN:. | have one nore coment, if
possi bl e.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: You' ve al ready used your
5 mnutes, sir.

MR. LINN:. | used all 5 m nutes?

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: You did. Thank you.

Wth that, is there any further discussion by
t he Comm ssi on nenbers?

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: Well, | wanted to
clarify that, when we're tal king optical scanning,

that we're not tal king about any kind of retinal
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scanni ng.

MR CHATOI: Correct.

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHOLT: Optical neans it's
the manner in which the machi ne scans the ballots.
It has nothing to do with scanning anyone's eyebal |
i n any way, shape, or form

MR. CHATOI: Right. It takes an inmage of both
sides of the ballot.

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHCOLT: Right. And
respectfully disagree with the assessnent of our
el ection systens, but that's ny only comment.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: M conment woul d be j ust
directed to the comments, the public comment we
heard. | guess what we're charged with today is to
det erm ne whet her the systens have been tested to
ensure that they're conpliant wth existing |aw,
not to determ ne whether we should use -- change
the law to determ ne what we have now and go to
paper ball ots.

So, for ne, if we have a professional
organi zation that's trained and experienced in
testing machi nes to ensure conpliance wth | aw and
any applicabl e advisory opinion and they say it is,
| feel a duty to approve that. The change of

el ection systens from paper ballot to what we have
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nowis really an argunent to a different body, in
my opinion. |'mnot saying | agree or | disagree
with you, and | appreciate you comng and |letting
us know how you feel. | just don't feel like | can
address what you're asking for.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: W0 can?

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ: The public comment is closed
for this one.

So | just wanted to |let you know we do
appreci ate your comments; | just don't feel I|ike
we're the body who could provide you any renedy.

M5. LAWEBON: | might just add as well that |
bel i eve VSTOP nentioned that the scanners -- now,

t hese scanners are scanning the paper ballots and
they are not connected to the Internet.

MR. CHATOT: That is correct.

M5. LAWBON: And that's exactly what | heard.

MR. CHATOT: That is correct. They have no
capability.

M5. LAWBON: They're not scanning the eye in
any way, shape, or form

MR, CHATOI: Correct.

M5. LAWSON: And those ballots, from
experience, | know those ballots are then avail abl e

for a recount or an audit, those actual paper
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bal | ot s.

MR. CHATOT: Yes. VSTOP al so conducts
post el ection audits.

M5. LAWBON: And | just m ght add one nore
thing for you all to think about, because | do
appreci ate your remarks as well. | served as a
county clerk for eight years, and the one tinme we
had problens with any election results is when sone
poll workers | ost some paper ball ots.
Intentionally? Possibly. But that was the one
time as a county clerk that | had any issues with
any election results was peopl e | osing paper
ballots. So --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: So |'ve got a question
NOW.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: The public hearing is closed
for this particular matter.

| s there any further discussion?

Hearing none, | will ask all in favor of the
nmotion on the floor say "Aye."

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: Aye.

MR. CLAYTOR  Aye.

MS. LAWSON:  Aye.

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ: Opposed "Nay. "

The "ayes" have it, and the notion to




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

Page 33

recertify this voting systemfor the term specified
by statute, subject to any l[imtations set forth in
the VSTOP report or inposed by the Commi ssion, is
adopt ed.

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHOLT: To clarify, this was
a new certification, not a recertification?

M5. NUSSMEYER: It's a new system

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Did | say recertification?
| " m sorry.

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT:  Yes.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Ckay. Move to the next.
Next matter before the Comm ssion is Unisyn
OpenEl ect optical scan voting system Engi neering
Change Order 17050.

| now recogni ze the VSTOP staff to present its
report and confirmthat the engineering change
order for this previously approved voting system
has passed the testing conducted by VSTOP and all
testing | aboratories, and confirmthat the system
conplies with Indiana | aw and with | EC Advi sory
Opi ni on 2022-08, if applicable.

MR, CHATOI: Thank you, M. Chairman.

ECO 17050 applies to voting system
OpenElect 2.2.1, and it affects the conponent of

t he OpenEl ect optical scan, also called OVO
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Description of change is that this change prevents
a concurrent closed process on the OVO. It was
observed that when "Cl ose" cards are used to
initiate the cl ose session process on the OVO t hat
when the "C ose" card was returned to the operator,
t he scanner was not disabled. This opened the
possibility for the "Close" card to be entered a
second tine and the potential of starting a second
cl ose process.

Depending on the timng of these processes, if
t hey occur concurrently, as opposed to
sequentially, the close session process wl|
generate a report which shows doubl ed vote counts
and produces a tally.xm file that cannot be
upl oaded into the central tabulation system This
change w Il disable the scanner after the "C ose"
card is returned, preventing the opportunity of
creating a second cl ose session process. OpenEl ect
will nove fromVersion 2.2 to 2.2.1, and the new
software version for the OVOw Il be 2.2.1.

Menbers of the VSTOP team have reviewed the
ECO 17050, including the supporting docunents and
Voting System Testing Laboratory reports. VSTCOP
finds the ECO conplies with the requirenents for

de mnims changes to hardware conponents. The ECO
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only applies to the specific Unisyn OpenEl ect
voting systemnotated in the table above. Unisyn
Voting Solutions and OpenEl ect are EAC certified,
and the ECO was approved by the EAC

Wth this ECO OpenElect wll nove from2.2 to
2.2.1, and the new software version for OVO w || be
2.2.1. VSTOP recommends approval of ECO 17050.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Ckay. For purposes of
commenci ng Conm ssion discussion on this matter, |
nove to approve the application submtted for
approval of this engineering change order as
conplying with Indiana | aw and | ndi ana El ecti on
Comm ssion Advi sory Opinion 2022-08, if applicable.

|s there a second?

MR. CLAYTOR  Second.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Wth that, | will ask if
there's any representative of the vendor to have
any conments.

M5. BUCHANAN: Janet Buchanan,
B-u-c-h-a-n-a-n, RBM No additional conments.
Thank you.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Thank you.

Any nmenber of the public with respect to this
one?

Any further discussion by the Comm ssion?
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Hearing none, | will ask for a vote on the
pending notion. All in favor say "Aye."

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHCLT: Aye.

MR CLAYTOR  Aye.

MS. LAWSON:  Aye.

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ: Opposed "Nay. "

The "ayes" have it.

Ckay. Next itemis Unisyn QpenEl ect optical
scan voting system 2. 2.2 Engi neeri ng Change Orders
1025, 1026, 1027, 3476, and 17059.

| again recognize the VSTOP staff to present
the report and confirmthat the five engi neering
change orders for this previously approved voting
system which woul d be designated as Version 2.2. 2,
have passed the testing conducted by VSTOP and all
testing | aboratories, and to confirmthat the
systemconplies with Indiana | aw and | EC Advi sory
Opi ni on 2022-08, if applicable.

MR. CHATOT: Thank you, M. Chairnman.

| wll read descriptions of each ECO and our
recomrendat i on.

ECO 1025, applying to voting system
OpenEl ect 2.2, the conponent is transport nedia.
ECO 1025 adds a new 4 GB USB fl ash drive, Model
3SE-4GB, as a replacenent for the current 1 GB
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part, Model 2SE-1GB, due to the current nodel no
| onger being commercially avail able for purchase.
Added I nnodi sk Model 3SE-4GB and Vendor Part Nunber
DEUA1- 044 61SCASB- B088. Renoved | nnodi sk Mbdel
2SE-1GB and Vendor Part Nunber DEUA1l-01d 72AC1SB-
B088.

ECO 1026 applies to voting system
OpenEl ect 2.2. Conponent is fan for Freedom Vote
Scan, or FVS. ECO 1026 adds a new fan,
Anode JZ-0001, as a replacenent for the current
part, Intel E97379-003, due to the current nodel no
| onger being commercially avail able for purchase.
The fan being updated is an internal part for the
Freedom Vot e Scan conponent.

ECO 1027, applying to voting system
OpenEl ect 2.2, another fan for Freedom Vote Scan,
FVS. ECO 1027 is an update to alternate commerci al
of f-the-shel f conponents, nenory nodul e and USB
flash drive, due to current parts no | onger being
commercially available. Both alternative
conponents used with the Freedom Vote Scan are the
same manufacturer, form fit, and function. Added
DDR- 2400 Menory Modul e as an alternative conponent
for CTAGASFS824A.

ECO 3476, applying to voting system
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OpenEl ect 2.2, conponent OpenEl ect voting optical,
or OVO ECO 3476 is an OVO nodi fication that
addresses the possibility of inserting a ball ot
during the transition to jamed bal |l ot handling on
the OVO. This introduces a potential race
condition that could result in a cast ballot being
returned to the user. This proposal enconpasses
m nor changes to six files, extending the
I npl enmentati on of nethods to renove and restore the
reference to the nodule that accepts ballot data in
the event of a jamerror code fromthe scanner and
restores it when the jamcondition is no | onger
active.

Per Unisyn, this was originally inplenented in
the AbstractReaderClient.java file but was
rei npl enented as two nethods in ReaderDriver.java,
hi deReadLi st ener and restoreReadLi stener, so it
could be used by nultiple nodules. An additional
flag and del ay were added to ensure no data is sent
fromthe scanner to the software while the jamis
bei ng handl ed.

Products affected are QpenEl ect voting
optical, OVO Version 2.2.1. Per Unisyn, the new
software version for the OVOw Il now be 2.2. 2.

ECO 17059 applies to the OpenElect 2.2 voting
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system and the Freedom Vote Scan conponent, or FVS.
ECO 17059 replaces the plastic ballot diverter with
a higher quality netal replacenent. The current
bal | ot diverter is made fromflat plastic. The
process of repeatedly adding the designated curve
was not perfected; therefore, nultiple vendors
reported to Unisyn they were unable to reproduce it
repeatedly. To elimnate the issue, Unisyn is
replacing the heat-fornmed ABS plastic sheet part
with a drop-in replacenent part requiring no

addi tional changes to inplenent. The current ABS
pl astic sheet part will be replaced with a bent

al um num part which is an exact match for the
former plastic piece and is nore easily repeated
during the manufacturing process.

Menbers of the VSTOP team have reviewed the
ECOs' supporting docunents and the Voting System
Test Laboratory reports. VSTOP finds these ECOs
conply with the requirenents for de mnims changes
to hardware conponents. These ECOs only apply to
the specific Unisyn OpenEl ect 2.2 voting systens
notated in the table above. Unisyn OpenEl ect 2.2
I's Election Assistance Conm ssion certified, and
the ECOs were al so approved by the EAC

VSTOP recomends approval of ECGOs 1025, 1026,
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1027, 3476, and 1059 updating OpenElect 2.2 to
OpenEl ect 2. 2. 2.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Thank you. Could you clarify
the last. Was it 170597

MR. CHATOI: 17059, yes.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Ckay. At this tinme I'l]
recogni ze any vendor representative who has any
coment s.

Seei ng none, any nenber of the public for
addi ti onal comment ?

Seei ng none, any further discussion by the
Comm ssi on?

VI CE CHAl RVAN OVERHOLT:  No.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Seeing none, all in favor say
"Aye. "

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: Aye.

MR. CLAYTOR  Aye.

M5. LAWSON: Aye.

CHAl RVAN KLUTZ: Nay?

The "ayes" have it. The notion passes.

We now nove to our final election system
certification which is McroVote direct record

el ectronic voting systeminfinity 4.4-1N, ENMS 4-3A,
EMS 4.1, EMS 4-0B Engi neering Change Orders 136 and
137.
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"1l now recognize VSTOP to present its report
and to confirmthat the engi neering change orders
for these two versions of the previously approved
voting system which would be designhated as
Infinity Revision E-1 and Infinity VWPAT Revision
A-1, have passed the testing conducted by VSTOP and
all testing laboratories, and to confirmthat the
system conplies with Indiana | aw and with I ndi ana
El ecti on Conmm ssion Advisory Opinion 2022-08, if
appl i cabl e.

MR, CHATOTI: Thank you, M. Chairman.

ECN 136 applies to voting systens EMS 4. 4-1IN,
EMS 4.3-A, EM5S 4.1, and EMS 4. 0B. The conponent
affected is the Infinity Revision E1 panel and the
VWPAT Revision AL. The current Infinity,

Revi sion E, display and smart card reader and
VWPAT, Revision A internal serial connector and
capacitor on the port switching PCB are end-of-life
Wi th suppliers. ECN 136 is a nodification to

repl ace these conponents with equival ent parts.

The nodification is conpatible with all system

har dware and software. There is no form fit, or
functi on change.

ECN 137 applies to voting systens EMS 4. 4-1N,
EMS 4.3-A, EMS 4.1, and EMS 4.0B. The conponent is
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the All-In-One Voting Station Booth. ECN 137
repl aces the netal ADA RJ45 coupl er housi ng nount ed
in the All-1n-One Voting Station Booth with a
shi el ded plastic RJ45 coupl er housing, Part Nunber
RJA5M25Z0- 6A, to elimnate susceptibility to
el ectrostatic disruption. The coupler and nol ded
mounting plate will be attached to the booth using
three machine screws with a Loctite on the threads
to secure the plate during transport and storage.
The coupl er provides a convenient way to attach a
Doubl eTal k text-to-speech reader or tally tape
printer to the VWPAT or Infinity panel. There is
no form fit, or function change. ECN 137 is
conpatible with all system hardware and software.

Menbers of the VSTOP team have revi ewed the
ECOs' supporting docunents and VSTL reports. VSTOP
finds these ECOs conply with the requirenents for
de mnims, or mnor, changes to hardware
conponents as there is no change to form fit, or
function. The ECOs only apply to the specific
M croVote voting systens notated in the table
above. The McroVote EM5S 4.4-INis EAC certified,
and the ECCs were approved by the EAC.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: Thank you.

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHCOLT: And you're
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recomrendi ng approval ; correct? You didn't read
t hat | ast one.

MR. CHATOT: You're right. 1'mso sorry.
VSTOP recomrends approval for ECOs 136 and 137.
Yes.

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHCLT: Just a little
m nor. ..

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: W always |like to have that
on record.

MR. CHATOT: Thank you for the rem nder.

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ: Wth that, I'll recognize any
vendor representative who would |ike to speak on
this matter.

Seei ng none, any nenber of the public who
would i ke to speak on this matter?

Seei ng none, any further discussion by the
Comm ssi on nenbers?

Hearing none, all in favor of the pending
notion say "Aye."

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: Aye.

MR CLAYTOR  Aye.

MS. LAWSON:.  Aye.

CHAI RVMAN KLUTZ: Opposed "Nay."

The "ayes" have it, and the notion carries.

The | ndi ana El ecti on Comm ssion has fini shed
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its business for the day. Is there a notion to
adj ourn?

M5. LAWSON: So noved.

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Second?

MR. CLAYTOR  Second.

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: Hold on a second.

MR, KOCHEVAR: For Uni syn and M croVote,
technically you didn't offer a notion. | would
recomend setting for the record before we go hone.

M5. NUSSMEYER: For Unisyn, | have that you
did offer the nmotion. It was for No. 6, which they
did 6 and 7 together. |It's No. 8 | don't recall a
notion being nmade for. He presented themtogether.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: For the Unisyn OpenEl ect
optical scan voting system Engi neeri ng Change O der
170507

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: No. | think this
| ast one is what you're tal king about.

M5. NUSSMEYER: So | have recorded a notion
for 17050. You took 17050, which is Item No. 6 on
t he agenda, and No. 7, those engi neering change
orders. | have what is in the binder. So No. 6 is
Engi neeri ng Change Order 1050, which is the Unisyn
QpenEl ect. Nunber 7 is Unisyn Open El ect optical
scan system 2. 2.2 Engi neering Change Orders 1025
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and so forth. | actually have -- | assuned you
t ook those under the sane notion, but for the
M croVote, this |ast one, those two change orders,
| don't have recorded in ny notes, which does not
nean it did not happen, but that there's not --

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: So for this |ast one,
M croVot e?

M5. NUSSMEYER  Maria, do you have it?

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: We'll do a quick notion. So
you're right. | did conbine the other two.

|'d nmake a notion that we approve the
application submtted for approval of the M croVote
direct record electronic voting systemlInfinity
EMS 4.4-1N, EMS 4.3A, EMS 4.1, EMS 4-0B Engi neering
Change Orders 136, 137.

MR. CLAYTOR: M. Chairman, not to pretend ny
name i s Roberts, but do we need to wi thdraw the

notion to adjourn before this notion is made? |If

so, I'll withdraw ny second.
CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: | don't think we need a
motion to pull it out, but I wll wthdraw ny

noti on to adjourn.
| am now goi ng to make anot her notion, and |
nove to approve the application submtted for

approval regarding McroVote direct record
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el ectronic voting systeminfinity EMS 4. 4-1N,
EMS 4-3A, EMS 4.1, EMS 4-0B Engi neeri ng Change
Orders 136, 137 as conplying with Indiana | aw and
| ndi ana El ection Conm ssion Advi sory
Opi ni on 2022-08, as applicable.

MR CLAYTOR |'Ill second.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: All in favor?

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHCOLT:  Aye.

MR CLAYTOR  Aye.

MS. LAWSON:  Aye.

CHAl RMAN KLUTZ: Mbtion carries. Appreciate
the clarification. W now have a cl ean record.

MR. KING Can we confirmwe have a vote on
the final one from --

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: That's what we just did.

MR KING Al right.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: | am now goi ng to make a
notion to adjourn.

|s there a second?

MR. CLAYTOR:  Second.

CHAI RMAN KLUTZ: |I'mgoing to offer tine for
di scussi on.

No di scussion. Al in favor.

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHCLT: Aye.

MR CLAYTOR  Aye.
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M5. LAWSON: Aye.

CHAI RVAN KLUTZ: Mdtion carries. W're
adj our ned.

(The I ndiana El ection Conm ssion Public

Session was adjourned at 1:53 p.m)
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STATE OF | NDI ANA
COUNTY OF HAM LTON

I, Maria W Collier, a Notary Public in and
for said county and state, do hereby certify that the
f oregoi ng public session was taken at the tinme and
pl ace heretofore nentioned between 1:00 p.m and
1: 53 p.m;

That said public session was taken down in
st enograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewiting
under ny direction; and that the typewitten
transcript is a true record of the public session.

IN WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny
hand and affi xed ny notarial seal this 30th day of
August, 2023.

Mo, W. G

Maria W. Collier
MOTARY PUBLIC SEAL

STATE OF INDIAMA
Commiszion No. NPDES3933
Wy Commission Expines Dec. 5, 2024

My Comm ssi on expires:
Decenber 5, 2024

Job No. 183263
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      1          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Meeting of the Indiana



      2     Election Commission is called to order.  For



      3     purposes of the record, I will note the following



      4     members of the Commission are present:  Myself,



      5     Zach Klutz, designated as proxy for Chairman Paul



      6     Okeson; Vice Chairman Suzannah Wilson Overholt to



      7     my left; Michael Claytor, to my left, designated as



      8     proxy for Commission Member Karen Celestino-



      9     Horseman; and to my right, the honorable Connie



     10     Lawson, designated as proxy for Commission Member



     11     Litany Pyle.



     12          Also in attendance are Indiana Election



     13     Division staff:  Co-Director Brad King and



     14     Co-Director Angie Nussmeyer, Co-General Counsels



     15     Matthew Kochevar and Valerie Warycha.



     16          Our court reporter today is Maria W. Collier



     17     from Stewart Richardson Deposition Services.



     18          Just a housekeeping item, I want to advise the



     19     Commission members and those present that we will



     20     need to plan to stop our Commission business no



     21     later than 2:30 p.m. today.



     22          Next item on the agenda is documentation of



     23     compliance with Open Door Law.  I would request the



     24     co-directors confirm that the Commission meeting



     25     has been properly noticed as required by Open Door
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      1     Law.



      2          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, on behalf of myself



      3     and Co-Director Nussmeyer, we certify that notice



      4     of this meeting was properly given in accordance



      5     with Indiana's Open Door Law.



      6          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you, Brad.



      7          The next item on the agenda is the approval of



      8     our August 11, 2023, Commission minutes.  I



      9     recognize the co-directors to present the minutes



     10     of the August 11, 2023, meeting.



     11          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



     12     Commission, on behalf of myself and Co-Director



     13     Nussmeyer, we have reviewed the minutes and



     14     recommend them to the Commission for your approval.



     15          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Accept a motion to approve.



     16          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  So moved.



     17          MS. LAWSON:  I'll second.



     18          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Hearing a second, all in



     19     favor say "Aye."



     20          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



     22          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Opposed.



     24          The "ayes" have it and the motion to approve



     25     minutes is adopted.
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      1          Is there consent from the Commission members



      2     for the Election Division staff to use our



      3     signature stamps for any documents approved by the



      4     Commission today?



      5          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Consent.



      6          MR. CLAYTOR:  Consent.



      7          MS. LAWSON:  Consent.



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Okay.  Next item on the



      9     agenda is the adoption of campaign finance orders.



     10     I recognize the co-directors to present the



     11     campaign finance orders 2023-200 through 421



     12     reflecting the actions taken by the Commission at



     13     the August 11, 2023, meeting.



     14          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



     15     Commission, on behalf of myself and Co-Director



     16     Nussmeyer, with thanks for our very diligent



     17     campaign finance staff members, Abbey Taylor and



     18     Michelle Thompson, who prepared these orders in the



     19     week interval since the meeting at which the



     20     Commission made its findings, we present these to



     21     you and recommend them for your approval.



     22          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     23          Is there a motion to adopt campaign finance



     24     orders as presented?



     25          MR. CLAYTOR:  So moved.
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      1          MS. LAWSON:  Second.



      2          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Hearing a motion and a



      3     second, is there any discussion?



      4          Hearing none, all in favor say "Aye."



      5          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      6          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



      7          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Opposed "Nay."



      9          The motion carries.



     10          The next item on the agenda is the



     11     administration of oath.  Any person who plans to



     12     testify at today's meeting on any matter, please



     13     stand if you're able to and respond "I do" upon the



     14     reading of the oath.  And I recognize Matthew



     15     Kochevar to administer the oath.



     16          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Please raise your right hand.



     17     Please say "I do" after recitation of the oath.



     18          Do you solemnly swear or affirm, under the



     19     penalties of perjury, that the testimony you are



     20     about to give to the Indiana Election Commission is



     21     the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the



     22     truth?  Please say "I do."



     23          ALL:  I do.



     24          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Okay.  The next item on our



     25     agenda is consideration of applications for
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      1     recertification of previously certified voting



      2     systems.  Before we move to formally consider the



      3     applications for approval of new versions of



      4     previously certified voting systems and engineering



      5     change orders currently on our agenda today, I



      6     would state for the record the Commission will



      7     offer the opportunity for public comment regarding



      8     each application for certification of a new version



      9     of the previously certified voting systems or



     10     engineering change orders that will be considered



     11     by our Commission today.



     12          I would ask any person making a comment to



     13     assist our court reporter by identifying themselves



     14     and spelling their names for the record, and I



     15     remind everyone that no one should be speaking at



     16     the same time as another person who has already



     17     been recognized on the floor.



     18          Due to our time constraints today, I would



     19     also request that comments or presentations be kept



     20     to 5 minutes or less.



     21          Further, any person who wishes to present



     22     documents or other evidence to the Commission must



     23     provide that material to Valerie Warycha, who is



     24     sitting to my right, to be preserved for the



     25     record, unless you have already submitted those to
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      1     the Commission.



      2          Finally, in terms of procedure, the public



      3     will have an opportunity to offer comments



      4     following the presentation of each item by the



      5     Voting Systems Technical Oversight Program, VSTOP,



      6     and their representatives.



      7          With that, let's move to our first election



      8     system certification, and that is the certification



      9     of Election Systems & Software optical scan ballot



     10     card voting system EVS 6.3.0.0.



     11          I now recognize the VSTOP staff to present its



     12     report with respect to this system and to confirm



     13     that this voting system has passed the testing



     14     conducted by VSTOP and all testing laboratories,



     15     and confirm that the system complies with Indiana



     16     law and with IEC Advisory Opinion 2022-08, if



     17     applicable.



     18          Before we begin with the report, I would ask



     19     that each person here on behalf of VSTOP please



     20     introduce themselves.



     21          MR. CHATOT:  Thank you, Commissioner.  My name



     22     is Marc Chatot, M-a-r-c, C-h-a-t-o-t.  I am the



     23     interim project manager, program manager of VSTOP



     24     and the election system certification specialist.



     25          DR. KINSELLA:  My name is Chad Kinsella,

�



                                                           10



      1     co-director of VSTOP.



      2          MR. CHATOT:  I will begin by reading our



      3     recommendation for EVS 6.3.0.0.  The EVS 6.3.0.0 is



      4     a paper-based end-to-end election management



      5     system, or EMS, that supports jurisdictions'



      6     election needs by creating and maintaining a



      7     central election database, formatting and printing



      8     ballots, programming election equipment, and



      9     collecting and reporting results.  This system was



     10     certified by the U.S. Election Assistance



     11     Commission on November 17, 2022, and is compliant



     12     with the Voluntary Voting System Guidelines,



     13     VVSG 1.0.  Changes and major features being



     14     introduced by this voting system are the DS300 poll



     15     place scanner and tabulator, the DS950 precinct



     16     scanner, and several upgrades to security.



     17          The DS950 will eventually replace the DS850 as



     18     internal parts for the DS850 go end-of-life in



     19     their production cycle.  The DS950 will use all new



     20     internal parts allowing for greater performance and



     21     longevity.  A security and shipping improvement for



     22     the DS950 is flush security tag recesses on the



     23     cabinet, preventing snags and inadvertent security



     24     seal breaks during travel.  EVS 6.3.0.0 introduces



     25     standard firmware for all devices and a new
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      1     Linux OS for the DS200.  An upgraded suite of flash



      2     drives is used in EVS 6.3.0.0, including the



      3     introduction of YubiKeys, a physical two-factor



      4     authentication method required to access the EMS.



      5          Findings and limitations:  The DS200 and DS300



      6     scanners are produced without modem or network



      7     hardware and are incapable of connecting to the



      8     Internet.  DS300 tabulators provide improvements to



      9     scanning and printing speeds compared to the DS200.



     10     ElectionWare is individually licensed and can be



     11     configured to only support equipment that is



     12     approved for use in Indiana.  EVS 6.3.0.0



     13     introduces the YubiKey, a physical two-factor



     14     authentication for accessing the EMS, adding



     15     another layer of security.



     16          There are no changes to accessibility in the



     17     EVS 6.3.0.0 system from previously certified



     18     versions.  ES&S demonstrated their EMS's



     19     adjudication capability to the VSTOP team during



     20     field-testing.  VSTOP determined the adjudication



     21     capabilities conform with Indiana law under



     22     IC 3-11-15-13.8.  ES&S demonstrated their EMS's



     23     adjudication capability to the VSTOP team during



     24     field-testing.  VSTOP determined the adjudication



     25     capabilities conform with Indiana law under
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      1     IC 3-11-15-13.8.



      2          VSTOP field test:  Before the VSTOP field



      3     test, VSTOP reviewed the VSTL reports submitted by



      4     Pro V&V.  This voting system underwent



      5     field-testing at Ball State University from



      6     May 15th through the 18th of 2023 by the VSTOP



      7     team.  The field test included software hash



      8     verification of all required elements of the



      9     Indiana statutes regarding voting systems as well



     10     as an ADA compliance evaluation.  Mock elections,



     11     including the IED-approved test case scenarios for



     12     straight party voting, were conducted as part of



     13     the field test for this voting system.



     14          Recommendation:  On the basis of VSTOP's



     15     review and evaluation, we find that the voting



     16     system referenced herein, and with the Scope of



     17     Certification, meets all the requirements of the



     18     Indiana Code for use in the state of Indiana.  This



     19     finding includes compliance with legal requirements



     20     for voters with disabilities.  VSTOP recommends



     21     approval of EVS 6.3.0.0.



     22          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     23          For purposes of just commencing the Commission



     24     discussion on this matter, I move to approve the



     25     application submitted for approval of this election
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      1     system as complying with Indiana law and Indiana



      2     Election Commission Advisory Opinion 2022-08, as



      3     applicable.



      4          Is there a second?



      5          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Second.



      6          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  All in favor.



      7          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      8          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



      9          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     10          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  That's just for



     11     discussion, right?



     12          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Right.  This is for purposes



     13     of discussion.



     14          So now we'll ask if there's any representative



     15     from the vendor that would like to talk following



     16     the report.



     17          MR. MANGANARO:  My name is Mark Manganaro,



     18     M-a-n-g-a-n-a-r-o.  I'm the Indiana state



     19     certification manager.  I just basically --



     20          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Sir, can you just take the



     21     oath real quick for us.



     22          MR. MANGANARO:  Oh, sure.



     23          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thanks.



     24          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Just raise your right hand.



     25     Say "I do" after recitation of the oath.
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      1          Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the



      2     testimony you are about to give to the Indiana



      3     Election Commission is the truth, the whole truth,



      4     and nothing but the truth?  Please say "I do."



      5          MR. MANGANARO:  I do.



      6          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Thank you.



      7          MR. MANGANARO:  And, again, Mark Manganaro



      8     with Election Systems & Software.  Just wanted to



      9     thank the VSTOP team.  I know they had quite a few



     10     system testing to do, poll books, ECOs.  Marc did



     11     an outstanding job getting the certification done



     12     in a timely manner.  I'm here today if you guys



     13     have any other questions regarding the system that



     14     VSTOP can't address.  Thank you.



     15          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     16          At this time I'll recognize anyone from the



     17     public that would like to speak.



     18          MR. LINN:  I'd like to speak.



     19          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  We just need you to take the



     20     oath, sir.



     21          MR. LINN:  Sure.



     22          MR. KOCHEVAR:  I'm going to ask, through the



     23     Chair, if there's anyone else in the audience who



     24     also has any inclination to speak, it would be



     25     better to have you sworn right now so we don't have
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      1     to keep pausing.  So if you're thinking about



      2     speaking at any point, if you want to stand up and



      3     raise your right hand.



      4          Sir, raise your right hand as well.  Say "I



      5     do" after recitation of the oath.



      6          Do you solemnly swear or affirm, under the



      7     penalties of perjury, that the testimony you are



      8     about to give to the Indiana Election Commission is



      9     the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the



     10     truth?  Please say "I do."



     11          ALL:  I do.



     12          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Thank you.



     13          MR. LINN:  I just have several points I'd like



     14     to make.



     15          THE REPORTER:  Sir, could you state your name



     16     and spell it for me, please.



     17          MR. LINN:  Yes.  My name is D. Edward,



     18     E-d-w-a-r-d, Linn, L-i-n-n, and I just have several



     19     remarks I'd like to make.



     20          I don't know if all these changes to the DS200



     21     scanner were addressed, but this is going back



     22     several years ago, and this is a web article from



     23     VentureBeat, "Optical scanning machines are



     24     susceptible to miscounting U.S. voter ballots."



     25     And looking at this, there's several things that
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      1     this device does under the cover of darkness, and I



      2     don't think that's a good thing.



      3          We want transparent elections.  And I know you



      4     guys at Ball State think you do a really good job,



      5     and you probably do the best job you possibly can,



      6     and I'm not refuting anything you just said.  All



      7     I'm saying is, these are black boxes, and they run



      8     by algorithms, and algorithms can be manipulated.



      9     And they can be manipulated by somebody coming in



     10     and putting a device into the machine and hacking



     11     the machine.



     12          If you think that's not possible, we just had



     13     a number of different hacks to our system.  I just



     14     had my information hacked at the very secure



     15     banking system, and they gave me two free years of



     16     credit monitoring.  So this has happened to me when



     17     I was at Purdue University.  It was hacked; my



     18     social security and personal information was



     19     hacked.  So people that say these are the most



     20     secure elections in history, all that is bunk, in



     21     my opinion.  Okay?



     22          Now, can I give you irrefutable evidence of



     23     that?  No.  But what I'm saying is the citizens are



     24     not very pleased with the way the elections are



     25     being done.  We'd like to go back to paper ballots
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      1     the way they used to be done.  We'd like to have



      2     these documents sealed, not scanned, because



      3     scanning these documents, like they've shown in



      4     Georgia, they can be deleted.  So we want the real



      5     ballots.  We don't want virtual ballots.  We want



      6     real ballots, and we want ballots that are scanned



      7     by human eyes, not by machines that can be rigged



      8     or algorithms changed under the cover of darkness



      9     to give fraudulent results.



     10          You may say, well, that's not possible, but it



     11     is possible because these people say it is.



     12     Anytime you have a computer, it can be hacked.



     13     Anytime you have a computer, the algorithms can be



     14     changed.  That's a fact.  In my opinion, there's no



     15     question.  Okay?



     16          And so I've got several documents here I'd



     17     like to give you.  One is the VentureBeat article



     18     having to do with the fact that these are



     19     susceptible in this county.  And I don't know if



     20     all these changes have been done on the machine,



     21     but there is one thing that's really, to me, very



     22     concerning, and that is the fact that they said



     23     that these machines aren't capable of being hacked



     24     to the point where an individual would attain



     25     administrative control over the machine, which
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      1     means they can change anything.  They can change



      2     anything on the machine software-wise, what have



      3     you.  They can delete votes.  They can do whatever



      4     they want.



      5          Now, here, in fact, there's a documentation



      6     from Georgia where it says that a total of



      7     1.7 million images of the ballots were deleted.



      8     And so I put that in the record as well.



      9     1.7 million ballot images were destroyed.



     10          You say, well, they can just go and take a



     11     look at the real ballots.  Well, the thing about it



     12     is, in Georgia they said no, you can't do that,



     13     that's private information.  And we've had that



     14     situation happen here in Indiana where we've had



     15     voter integrity groups saying we want to take a



     16     look at the cast vote records.  Not only were they



     17     stopped at the election board level, they were also



     18     stopped at the state legislature level because they



     19     said these cast vote records were confidential



     20     information.  In fact, other states find that



     21     they're not --



     22          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  You have 30 seconds.



     23          MR. LINN:  -- because there's no identifying



     24     information in those cast vote records that would



     25     make them confidential.  It's a hoax, in my
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      1     opinion, to do that.



      2          We need transparent elections.  We don't need



      3     elections done under the cover of darkness.  We



      4     don't need elections done under proprietary



      5     software.  We want things done in the open, under



      6     the clear transparent daylight, not under the cover



      7     of darknesses into a black box.



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you, sir.



      9          MR. LINN:  Thank you.  I yield my time.



     10          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Anyone else to speak on this?



     11          Yes, ma'am.  Please state your name.



     12          MS. STAMM:  My name is Jennifer Stamm,



     13     S-t-a-m-m, like Mary.  Thank you for the



     14     opportunity.  I didn't know I was going to be here.



     15     I just found out about the meeting earlier today.



     16     I don't know if I'll be as eloquent as the



     17     gentleman before me, so I appreciate your time.



     18          I am simply here just as a representative of a



     19     lot of people that are like myself, that are very



     20     distrusting of how we've been doing it, the



     21     machines.  I too want paper ballots.  I too see



     22     that there is a pathway to it.  I too see that it



     23     would take -- we even know how many volunteers it



     24     would take to actually get that done.  I am part of



     25     Indiana First Action group.  The canvassing that
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      1     was done through the voter rolls that we obtained



      2     through our own Secretary of State revealed some



      3     very astonishing and very disturbing information



      4     about the history of our elections.  Particularly



      5     this one was information from the 2020 election.



      6          I don't know if I'm allowed to ask a question,



      7     but I will, because it seems like absolute common



      8     sense that we would know, with the technology that



      9     we have today, that it is very easily hackable.  We



     10     see it all the time in the news.  If you actually



     11     look on a search engine that's outside of Google,



     12     you will find all kinds of information that



     13     actually refutes what a lot of the experts on the



     14     television are telling us.  We're not stupid.  We



     15     know.  And we the people are kind of tired of not



     16     feeling like we're being heard by the people that



     17     are in the seats making these decisions, so I say



     18     this respectfully.



     19          Do any of you people believe -- and I say this



     20     respectfully -- that our systems can be hacked,



     21     that there is an opportunity for nefarious



     22     activities and that they're not absolutely as safe



     23     and sound as we've been promised over the years?



     24     Because I know that's not true, and I would hate to



     25     believe that I'm sitting here in a roomful of
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      1     professionals that would actually say no, you're



      2     wrong, they are safe and secure, there's absolutely



      3     no way that anything can happen to any of your



      4     votes.  Because, to me, that's just an ignorant



      5     answer, and I don't mean any disrespect by it.



      6          But I just do want to say that I represent a



      7     lot of people.  There are thousands and thousands



      8     and thousands and thousands of people that feel



      9     like I do but have no idea where the meetings are,



     10     how to express an opinion.  I'm not as eloquent as



     11     I would like to be.  There was a lot of code.



     12     There was a lot of .06.3.0 and a lot of acronyms



     13     and things that probably are just a little bit over



     14     my head as far as that.  But one thing I will say I



     15     do understand is that systems are hackable.  And



     16     what we saw in the 2020 elections, the truth is out



     17     there.  It's being very much hid from us by



     18     mainstream media, and we all know that.  Anybody



     19     with any common sense recognizes that.  They were



     20     not safe and secure, they are not safe and secure,



     21     and paper ballots is what we want.



     22          So I just wanted you all to hear that I am one



     23     opinion of many.  Whether that goes anywhere or



     24     not, I just wanted to be heard, and I thank you for



     25     your time.
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      1          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



      2          MS. STAMM:  Thank you.



      3          MS. COTTON:  Hi there.  My name is Cindy



      4     Cotton, C-i-n-d-y, C-o-t-t-o-n, as in Nancy.  I do



      5     have a handout for everybody.  Okay?  Just forgive



      6     me.  I've got to read from the bottom of it.  I



      7     tried -- it's the very last paragraph.  I got very



      8     fortunate.  I am in a graduate study program in the



      9     state of Indiana, phenomenal to our city.  I just



     10     happened to end this session.  So up at the top is



     11     your reference.  All of that information is the



     12     guys that are super smart that wrote the textbook.



     13     It just so happened to be in my information systems



     14     class, so I just happened to take note of it.



     15          It starts out with an impossibility of



     16     100 percent security, because these guys wrote



     17     textbooks, they put some time and effort.  Let's go



     18     to the last paragraph.  Back in '95 -- so it's not



     19     a new thing -- L. Dain Gary, former manager of the



     20     U.S. Computer Emergency Response Team, CERT, in



     21     Pittsburgh, appeared on an episode of 60 Minutes



     22     and let the public in on an unpleasant...  You



     23     cannot make a computer secure.  You can reduce the



     24     risk, but you can't guarantee the security.



     25     Because of the futility of seeking 100 percent
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      1     security, many companies take out insurance



      2     policies to mitigate the financial impacts of a



      3     breach.  So if it were secure, you wouldn't be



      4     getting an insurance policy.  It is important to



      5     also consider the so-called Poulsen's law that



      6     states that information is secure when it costs



      7     more to get it than it's worth.  The role of



      8     management is to work with IT functions to make it



      9     harder to break in than it is worth.



     10          Listen, we all have stupendous intentions, but



     11     security costs, and governments across the country,



     12     you guys are doing the absolute best you can, but



     13     it costs hundreds of millions of dollars.  You've



     14     got multinational companies worth trillions that



     15     cannot secure their systems.



     16          Finally, I want you guys to also have this



     17     from the same textbook.  Forgive me.  I don't have



     18     the exact page on these, but I can get them.  While



     19     there's not been any evidence of hacking -- so back



     20     in 2017, they did a little kind of experiment.



     21     While there's not been any evidence of hackers



     22     tampering with voting results in the United States,



     23     attendees at a 2017 black hat hacker -- so a black



     24     hat, there's all kind of terms; they get paid to



     25     kind of try to hack into something; they're just
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      1     good folks with computers -- conference was invited



      2     to try to break into 30 voting machines



      3     representing several types in popular use in the



      4     2016 election.  The result of the competition was



      5     not encouraging, as the hackers broke into all the



      6     machines in under two hours.  One machine had an



      7     unpatched Windows XP vulnerability that had been



      8     known for 14 years.  Governmental agencies in the



      9     U.S. need to catch up on voting security.



     10          Guys, we all have phenomenal intentions.  I



     11     don't deny that.  I know you guys want what we



     12     want.  It's extremely expensive.  You've got to



     13     have technical people that you pay a ton of money,



     14     and every year it will go up and up and up.  If we



     15     have a system perhaps out there and they are



     16     implementing in the United States everywhere --



     17     it's happening every day as the days tick by --



     18     that can save you guys money and do just as good a



     19     job, if not better, let's consider it.  I'm not



     20     saying -- you can't stop everything in a second and



     21     change everything in a second.  That's not what I'm



     22     asking.  I'm asking you to think about it, ponder



     23     it, and maybe, as the days go by, we can start



     24     moving in that direction.  Thank you.



     25          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.
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      1          Any further comment on this matter for this



      2     voting system?



      3          MR. KOCHEVAR:  I have to swear you in.  Just



      4     raise your right hand.  Say "I do" after recitation



      5     of the oath.



      6          Do you solemnly swear or affirm, under the



      7     penalties of perjury, that the testimony you are



      8     about to give to the Indiana Election Commission is



      9     the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the



     10     truth?



     11          MS. FOX:  So help me God, I affirm.



     12          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Thank you.



     13          MS. FOX:  You want me to sign in?



     14          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes, please.



     15          MS. FOX:  My name is Rochelle Fox, and I --



     16          THE REPORTER:  Could you spell it, please.



     17          MS. FOX:  R-o-c-h-e-l-l-e, F-o-x.  And I know



     18     these ladies, and I know exactly what they're



     19     talking about.  It kind of upset me when I got the



     20     notice about the optical scan mainly because I



     21     don't know where that scan ends up.  I know where



     22     it begins, but I have no idea of where it's going.



     23          And the reason why I'm saying that is because



     24     I am one of the victims of Konnech.  I don't know



     25     if you know about Konnech or not.  It's -- what is
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      1     it?  It works with elections, and it's out -- it



      2     comes from California, and they went all around the



      3     country to -- I don't know -- connect somehow.  But



      4     what they did do without telling us was they took



      5     our private information.  They took our private



      6     information in three different counties here in



      7     Indiana for the poll workers.  When I registered



      8     innocently to work as a poll worker, they were



      9     taking my information, which went from Konnech to



     10     California to China.



     11          So if they can do that with me typing my



     12     information in, I can't even begin to imagine what



     13     they'd do with an eye scan.  They already have my



     14     information.  I don't know how to get it back.  I



     15     would like to do a class-action suit with other



     16     people and sue Konnech, but it won't get my



     17     information returned to me.  It's out there.  I've



     18     gotten phone calls -- and this is the honest to God



     19     truth -- from places on the other side of the



     20     world.  They don't talk to me.  They just call me.



     21     I've gotten phone calls with Chinese or some kind



     22     of writing on the number.  Just crazy.  And I don't



     23     know who is trying to communicate with me, if



     24     they're listening in on me or what.  Would you all



     25     like to live like that, knowing that some stranger
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      1     out there has all your personal information?



      2          You have put your social security number in



      3     there when you sign up to be a poll worker, so the



      4     social security number tells you everything.  So



      5     they know everything about me.  I walk around every



      6     day wondering who is looking at me.  That's not a



      7     good way to be free in a country that gives us the



      8     right to have our liberty.  I mean, it's just



      9     crazy.  And I know, and these ladies know too, we



     10     know it was done, what, in Johnson County, Lake



     11     County, and Marion County.



     12          MR. LINN:  Allen County as well.



     13          MS. FOX:  Yeah.  They chose the largest



     14     counties so they could -- I don't know what they



     15     want with our information, but I know they do have



     16     it.  And that's why I will never work the polls



     17     again.  I will volunteer and be a watcher, but I'm



     18     never working them again, because this was done in



     19     2020.  I didn't find out until this year, and I



     20     worked the 2022 election as a poll worker.  So can



     21     you imagine that?  I mean, I don't feel comfortable



     22     with that.



     23          And, like I said, you're scanning my eye,



     24     which means that you're getting my medical



     25     information.  You already have enough from Konnech,
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      1     so what more can you ask from me?  I'm just one



      2     person here in this United States, but who knows



      3     how much that ended up connecting me to other



      4     people, to other people in other places that I go



      5     and things that I do.  I just so happen to be, like



      6     some of the people here, a delegate in Marion



      7     County.  So that's not a safe place to be, and I



      8     don't trust using much of the Internet anymore



      9     because of that.



     10          Whereas, in contrast to that, a paper ballot



     11     like we're really pushing is what?  It has a



     12     watermark on it.  You verify your ID in front of a



     13     person with your signature, and, I mean, they can



     14     see your face.  Unless you're a clone, they know



     15     exactly who you are.  And then you sit down at the



     16     end of the day like we've done -- that's another



     17     thing I thought about too.  Did you guys know that,



     18     in order to work the polls, you have to be there at



     19     4:30 in the morning?  Did you know you get off at,



     20     like, 8:00 at night?  That's one day, which is the



     21     longest day of the year for me really, and at the



     22     end of the day, there's no guarantee that what



     23     we've done has been right because we don't know



     24     which ballots are correct and which aren't because



     25     they always have -- what do you call it? --
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      1     provisional ballots.



      2          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  You have 30 seconds,



      3     Mrs. Fox.



      4          MS. FOX:  Okay.  I'm sorry.  I didn't know



      5     about the time limit.



      6          But anyway, I am impeding -- not impeding.  I



      7     just ask that you please reconsider what you're



      8     thinking about.  We all love our privacy, and once



      9     we start scanning stuff across the Internet, it's



     10     bad enough with the data --



     11          (Timer)



     12          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     13          MS. FOX:  You're welcome.



     14          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Any further comment?



     15          MR. LINN:  I have one more comment, if



     16     possible.



     17          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  You've already used your



     18     5 minutes, sir.



     19          MR. LINN:  I used all 5 minutes?



     20          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  You did.  Thank you.



     21          With that, is there any further discussion by



     22     the Commission members?



     23          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Well, I wanted to



     24     clarify that, when we're talking optical scanning,



     25     that we're not talking about any kind of retinal
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      1     scanning.



      2          MR. CHATOT:  Correct.



      3          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Optical means it's



      4     the manner in which the machine scans the ballots.



      5     It has nothing to do with scanning anyone's eyeball



      6     in any way, shape, or form.



      7          MR. CHATOT:  Right.  It takes an image of both



      8     sides of the ballot.



      9          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Right.  And I



     10     respectfully disagree with the assessment of our



     11     election systems, but that's my only comment.



     12          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  My comment would be just



     13     directed to the comments, the public comment we



     14     heard.  I guess what we're charged with today is to



     15     determine whether the systems have been tested to



     16     ensure that they're compliant with existing law,



     17     not to determine whether we should use -- change



     18     the law to determine what we have now and go to



     19     paper ballots.



     20          So, for me, if we have a professional



     21     organization that's trained and experienced in



     22     testing machines to ensure compliance with law and



     23     any applicable advisory opinion and they say it is,



     24     I feel a duty to approve that.  The change of



     25     election systems from paper ballot to what we have
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      1     now is really an argument to a different body, in



      2     my opinion.  I'm not saying I agree or I disagree



      3     with you, and I appreciate you coming and letting



      4     us know how you feel.  I just don't feel like I can



      5     address what you're asking for.



      6          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Who can?



      7          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  The public comment is closed



      8     for this one.



      9          So I just wanted to let you know we do



     10     appreciate your comments; I just don't feel like



     11     we're the body who could provide you any remedy.



     12          MS. LAWSON:  I might just add as well that I



     13     believe VSTOP mentioned that the scanners -- now,



     14     these scanners are scanning the paper ballots and



     15     they are not connected to the Internet.



     16          MR. CHATOT:  That is correct.



     17          MS. LAWSON:  And that's exactly what I heard.



     18          MR. CHATOT:  That is correct.  They have no



     19     capability.



     20          MS. LAWSON:  They're not scanning the eye in



     21     any way, shape, or form.



     22          MR. CHATOT:  Correct.



     23          MS. LAWSON:  And those ballots, from



     24     experience, I know those ballots are then available



     25     for a recount or an audit, those actual paper
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      1     ballots.



      2          MR. CHATOT:  Yes.  VSTOP also conducts



      3     postelection audits.



      4          MS. LAWSON:  And I just might add one more



      5     thing for you all to think about, because I do



      6     appreciate your remarks as well.  I served as a



      7     county clerk for eight years, and the one time we



      8     had problems with any election results is when some



      9     poll workers lost some paper ballots.



     10     Intentionally?  Possibly.  But that was the one



     11     time as a county clerk that I had any issues with



     12     any election results was people losing paper



     13     ballots.  So --



     14          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  So I've got a question



     15     now.



     16          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  The public hearing is closed



     17     for this particular matter.



     18          Is there any further discussion?



     19          Hearing none, I will ask all in favor of the



     20     motion on the floor say "Aye."



     21          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     22          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



     23          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     24          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Opposed "Nay."



     25          The "ayes" have it, and the motion to
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      1     recertify this voting system for the term specified



      2     by statute, subject to any limitations set forth in



      3     the VSTOP report or imposed by the Commission, is



      4     adopted.



      5          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  To clarify, this was



      6     a new certification, not a recertification?



      7          MS. NUSSMEYER:  It's a new system.



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Did I say recertification?



      9     I'm sorry.



     10          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Yes.



     11          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Okay.  Move to the next.



     12     Next matter before the Commission is Unisyn



     13     OpenElect optical scan voting system Engineering



     14     Change Order 17050.



     15          I now recognize the VSTOP staff to present its



     16     report and confirm that the engineering change



     17     order for this previously approved voting system



     18     has passed the testing conducted by VSTOP and all



     19     testing laboratories, and confirm that the system



     20     complies with Indiana law and with IEC Advisory



     21     Opinion 2022-08, if applicable.



     22          MR. CHATOT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



     23          ECO 17050 applies to voting system



     24     OpenElect 2.2.1, and it affects the component of



     25     the OpenElect optical scan, also called OVO.
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      1     Description of change is that this change prevents



      2     a concurrent closed process on the OVO.  It was



      3     observed that when "Close" cards are used to



      4     initiate the close session process on the OVO that



      5     when the "Close" card was returned to the operator,



      6     the scanner was not disabled.  This opened the



      7     possibility for the "Close" card to be entered a



      8     second time and the potential of starting a second



      9     close process.



     10          Depending on the timing of these processes, if



     11     they occur concurrently, as opposed to



     12     sequentially, the close session process will



     13     generate a report which shows doubled vote counts



     14     and produces a tally.xml file that cannot be



     15     uploaded into the central tabulation system.  This



     16     change will disable the scanner after the "Close"



     17     card is returned, preventing the opportunity of



     18     creating a second close session process.  OpenElect



     19     will move from Version 2.2 to 2.2.1, and the new



     20     software version for the OVO will be 2.2.1.



     21          Members of the VSTOP team have reviewed the



     22     ECO 17050, including the supporting documents and



     23     Voting System Testing Laboratory reports.  VSTOP



     24     finds the ECO complies with the requirements for



     25     de minimis changes to hardware components.  The ECO
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      1     only applies to the specific Unisyn OpenElect



      2     voting system notated in the table above.  Unisyn



      3     Voting Solutions and OpenElect are EAC certified,



      4     and the ECO was approved by the EAC.



      5          With this ECO, OpenElect will move from 2.2 to



      6     2.2.1, and the new software version for OVO will be



      7     2.2.1.  VSTOP recommends approval of ECO 17050.



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Okay.  For purposes of



      9     commencing Commission discussion on this matter, I



     10     move to approve the application submitted for



     11     approval of this engineering change order as



     12     complying with Indiana law and Indiana Election



     13     Commission Advisory Opinion 2022-08, if applicable.



     14          Is there a second?



     15          MR. CLAYTOR:  Second.



     16          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  With that, I will ask if



     17     there's any representative of the vendor to have



     18     any comments.



     19          MS. BUCHANAN:  Janet Buchanan,



     20     B-u-c-h-a-n-a-n, RBM.  No additional comments.



     21     Thank you.



     22          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     23          Any member of the public with respect to this



     24     one?



     25          Any further discussion by the Commission?
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      1          Hearing none, I will ask for a vote on the



      2     pending motion.  All in favor say "Aye."



      3          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      4          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



      5          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



      6          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Opposed "Nay."



      7          The "ayes" have it.



      8          Okay.  Next item is Unisyn OpenElect optical



      9     scan voting system 2.2.2 Engineering Change Orders



     10     1025, 1026, 1027, 3476, and 17059.



     11          I again recognize the VSTOP staff to present



     12     the report and confirm that the five engineering



     13     change orders for this previously approved voting



     14     system, which would be designated as Version 2.2.2,



     15     have passed the testing conducted by VSTOP and all



     16     testing laboratories, and to confirm that the



     17     system complies with Indiana law and IEC Advisory



     18     Opinion 2022-08, if applicable.



     19          MR. CHATOT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



     20          I will read descriptions of each ECO and our



     21     recommendation.



     22          ECO 1025, applying to voting system



     23     OpenElect 2.2, the component is transport media.



     24     ECO 1025 adds a new 4 GB USB flash drive, Model



     25     3SE-4GB, as a replacement for the current 1 GB

�



                                                           37



      1     part, Model 2SE-1GB, due to the current model no



      2     longer being commercially available for purchase.



      3     Added Innodisk Model 3SE-4GB and Vendor Part Number



      4     DEUA1-04GI61SCASB-B088.  Removed Innodisk Model



      5     2SE-1GB and Vendor Part Number DEUA1-01GI72AC1SB-



      6     B088.



      7          ECO 1026 applies to voting system



      8     OpenElect 2.2.  Component is fan for Freedom Vote



      9     Scan, or FVS.  ECO 1026 adds a new fan,



     10     Anode JZ-0001, as a replacement for the current



     11     part, Intel E97379-003, due to the current model no



     12     longer being commercially available for purchase.



     13     The fan being updated is an internal part for the



     14     Freedom Vote Scan component.



     15          ECO 1027, applying to voting system



     16     OpenElect 2.2, another fan for Freedom Vote Scan,



     17     FVS.  ECO 1027 is an update to alternate commercial



     18     off-the-shelf components, memory module and USB



     19     flash drive, due to current parts no longer being



     20     commercially available.  Both alternative



     21     components used with the Freedom Vote Scan are the



     22     same manufacturer, form, fit, and function.  Added



     23     DDR-2400 Memory Module as an alternative component



     24     for CT4G4SFS824A.



     25          ECO 3476, applying to voting system
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      1     OpenElect 2.2, component OpenElect voting optical,



      2     or OVO.  ECO 3476 is an OVO modification that



      3     addresses the possibility of inserting a ballot



      4     during the transition to jammed ballot handling on



      5     the OVO.  This introduces a potential race



      6     condition that could result in a cast ballot being



      7     returned to the user.  This proposal encompasses



      8     minor changes to six files, extending the



      9     implementation of methods to remove and restore the



     10     reference to the module that accepts ballot data in



     11     the event of a jam error code from the scanner and



     12     restores it when the jam condition is no longer



     13     active.



     14          Per Unisyn, this was originally implemented in



     15     the AbstractReaderClient.java file but was



     16     reimplemented as two methods in ReaderDriver.java,



     17     hideReadListener and restoreReadListener, so it



     18     could be used by multiple modules.  An additional



     19     flag and delay were added to ensure no data is sent



     20     from the scanner to the software while the jam is



     21     being handled.



     22          Products affected are OpenElect voting



     23     optical, OVO, Version 2.2.1.  Per Unisyn, the new



     24     software version for the OVO will now be 2.2.2.



     25          ECO 17059 applies to the OpenElect 2.2 voting
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      1     system and the Freedom Vote Scan component, or FVS.



      2     ECO 17059 replaces the plastic ballot diverter with



      3     a higher quality metal replacement.  The current



      4     ballot diverter is made from flat plastic.  The



      5     process of repeatedly adding the designated curve



      6     was not perfected; therefore, multiple vendors



      7     reported to Unisyn they were unable to reproduce it



      8     repeatedly.  To eliminate the issue, Unisyn is



      9     replacing the heat-formed ABS plastic sheet part



     10     with a drop-in replacement part requiring no



     11     additional changes to implement.  The current ABS



     12     plastic sheet part will be replaced with a bent



     13     aluminum part which is an exact match for the



     14     former plastic piece and is more easily repeated



     15     during the manufacturing process.



     16          Members of the VSTOP team have reviewed the



     17     ECOs' supporting documents and the Voting System



     18     Test Laboratory reports.  VSTOP finds these ECOs



     19     comply with the requirements for de minimis changes



     20     to hardware components.  These ECOs only apply to



     21     the specific Unisyn OpenElect 2.2 voting systems



     22     notated in the table above.  Unisyn OpenElect 2.2



     23     is Election Assistance Commission certified, and



     24     the ECOs were also approved by the EAC.



     25          VSTOP recommends approval of ECOs 1025, 1026,
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      1     1027, 3476, and 1059 updating OpenElect 2.2 to



      2     OpenElect 2.2.2.



      3          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.  Could you clarify



      4     the last.  Was it 17059?



      5          MR. CHATOT:  17059, yes.



      6          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Okay.  At this time I'll



      7     recognize any vendor representative who has any



      8     comments.



      9          Seeing none, any member of the public for



     10     additional comment?



     11          Seeing none, any further discussion by the



     12     Commission?



     13          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  No.



     14          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Seeing none, all in favor say



     15     "Aye."



     16          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     17          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



     18          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     19          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Nay?



     20          The "ayes" have it.  The motion passes.



     21          We now move to our final election system



     22     certification which is MicroVote direct record



     23     electronic voting system Infinity 4.4-IN, EMS 4-3A,



     24     EMS 4.1, EMS 4-0B Engineering Change Orders 136 and



     25     137.
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      1          I'll now recognize VSTOP to present its report



      2     and to confirm that the engineering change orders



      3     for these two versions of the previously approved



      4     voting system, which would be designated as



      5     Infinity Revision E-1 and Infinity VVPAT Revision



      6     A-1, have passed the testing conducted by VSTOP and



      7     all testing laboratories, and to confirm that the



      8     system complies with Indiana law and with Indiana



      9     Election Commission Advisory Opinion 2022-08, if



     10     applicable.



     11          MR. CHATOT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



     12          ECN 136 applies to voting systems EMS 4.4-IN,



     13     EMS 4.3-A, EMS 4.1, and EMS 4.0B.  The component



     14     affected is the Infinity Revision E1 panel and the



     15     VVPAT Revision A1.  The current Infinity,



     16     Revision E, display and smart card reader and



     17     VVPAT, Revision A, internal serial connector and



     18     capacitor on the port switching PCB are end-of-life



     19     with suppliers.  ECN 136 is a modification to



     20     replace these components with equivalent parts.



     21     The modification is compatible with all system



     22     hardware and software.  There is no form, fit, or



     23     function change.



     24          ECN 137 applies to voting systems EMS 4.4-IN,



     25     EMS 4.3-A, EMS 4.1, and EMS 4.0B.  The component is
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      1     the All-In-One Voting Station Booth.  ECN 137



      2     replaces the metal ADA RJ45 coupler housing mounted



      3     in the All-In-One Voting Station Booth with a



      4     shielded plastic RJ45 coupler housing, Part Number



      5     RJ45M25Z0-6A, to eliminate susceptibility to



      6     electrostatic disruption.  The coupler and molded



      7     mounting plate will be attached to the booth using



      8     three machine screws with a Loctite on the threads



      9     to secure the plate during transport and storage.



     10     The coupler provides a convenient way to attach a



     11     DoubleTalk text-to-speech reader or tally tape



     12     printer to the VVPAT or Infinity panel.  There is



     13     no form, fit, or function change.  ECN 137 is



     14     compatible with all system hardware and software.



     15          Members of the VSTOP team have reviewed the



     16     ECOs' supporting documents and VSTL reports.  VSTOP



     17     finds these ECOs comply with the requirements for



     18     de minimis, or minor, changes to hardware



     19     components as there is no change to form, fit, or



     20     function.  The ECOs only apply to the specific



     21     MicroVote voting systems notated in the table



     22     above.  The MicroVote EMS 4.4-IN is EAC certified,



     23     and the ECOs were approved by the EAC.



     24          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     25          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  And you're
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      1     recommending approval; correct?  You didn't read



      2     that last one.



      3          MR. CHATOT:  You're right.  I'm so sorry.



      4     VSTOP recommends approval for ECOs 136 and 137.



      5     Yes.



      6          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Just a little



      7     minor...



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  We always like to have that



      9     on record.



     10          MR. CHATOT:  Thank you for the reminder.



     11          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  With that, I'll recognize any



     12     vendor representative who would like to speak on



     13     this matter.



     14          Seeing none, any member of the public who



     15     would like to speak on this matter?



     16          Seeing none, any further discussion by the



     17     Commission members?



     18          Hearing none, all in favor of the pending



     19     motion say "Aye."



     20          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



     22          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Opposed "Nay."



     24          The "ayes" have it, and the motion carries.



     25          The Indiana Election Commission has finished
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      1     its business for the day.  Is there a motion to



      2     adjourn?



      3          MS. LAWSON:  So moved.



      4          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Second?



      5          MR. CLAYTOR:  Second.



      6          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Hold on a second.



      7          MR. KOCHEVAR:  For Unisyn and MicroVote,



      8     technically you didn't offer a motion.  I would



      9     recommend setting for the record before we go home.



     10          MS. NUSSMEYER:  For Unisyn, I have that you



     11     did offer the motion.  It was for No. 6, which they



     12     did 6 and 7 together.  It's No. 8 I don't recall a



     13     motion being made for.  He presented them together.



     14          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  For the Unisyn OpenElect



     15     optical scan voting system Engineering Change Order



     16     17050?



     17          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  No.  I think this



     18     last one is what you're talking about.



     19          MS. NUSSMEYER:  So I have recorded a motion



     20     for 17050.  You took 17050, which is Item No. 6 on



     21     the agenda, and No. 7, those engineering change



     22     orders.  I have what is in the binder.  So No. 6 is



     23     Engineering Change Order 1050, which is the Unisyn



     24     OpenElect.  Number 7 is Unisyn Open Elect optical



     25     scan system 2.2.2 Engineering Change Orders 1025

�



                                                           45



      1     and so forth.  I actually have -- I assumed you



      2     took those under the same motion, but for the



      3     MicroVote, this last one, those two change orders,



      4     I don't have recorded in my notes, which does not



      5     mean it did not happen, but that there's not --



      6          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  So for this last one,



      7     MicroVote?



      8          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Maria, do you have it?



      9          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  We'll do a quick motion.  So



     10     you're right.  I did combine the other two.



     11          I'd make a motion that we approve the



     12     application submitted for approval of the MicroVote



     13     direct record electronic voting system Infinity



     14     EMS 4.4-IN, EMS 4.3A, EMS 4.1, EMS 4-0B Engineering



     15     Change Orders 136, 137.



     16          MR. CLAYTOR:  Mr. Chairman, not to pretend my



     17     name is Roberts, but do we need to withdraw the



     18     motion to adjourn before this motion is made?  If



     19     so, I'll withdraw my second.



     20          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  I don't think we need a



     21     motion to pull it out, but I will withdraw my



     22     motion to adjourn.



     23          I am now going to make another motion, and I



     24     move to approve the application submitted for



     25     approval regarding MicroVote direct record
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      1     electronic voting system Infinity EMS 4.4-IN,



      2     EMS 4-3A, EMS 4.1, EMS 4-0B Engineering Change



      3     Orders 136, 137 as complying with Indiana law and



      4     Indiana Election Commission Advisory



      5     Opinion 2022-08, as applicable.



      6          MR. CLAYTOR:  I'll second.



      7          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  All in favor?



      8          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      9          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



     10          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     11          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Motion carries.  Appreciate



     12     the clarification.  We now have a clean record.



     13          MR. KING:  Can we confirm we have a vote on



     14     the final one from --



     15          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  That's what we just did.



     16          MR. KING:  All right.



     17          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  I am now going to make a



     18     motion to adjourn.



     19          Is there a second?



     20          MR. CLAYTOR:  Second.



     21          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  I'm going to offer time for



     22     discussion.



     23          No discussion.  All in favor.



     24          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     25          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.
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      1          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



      2          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Motion carries.  We're



      3     adjourned.



      4          (The Indiana Election Commission Public



      5     Session was adjourned at 1:53 p.m.)



      6



      7



      8
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     23



     24



     25
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      1  STATE OF INDIANA



      2  COUNTY OF HAMILTON



      3          I, Maria W. Collier, a Notary Public in and



      4  for said county and state, do hereby certify that the



      5  foregoing public session was taken at the time and



      6  place heretofore mentioned between 1:00 p.m. and



      7  1:53 p.m.;



      8          That said public session was taken down in



      9  stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewriting



     10  under my direction; and that the typewritten



     11  transcript is a true record of the public session.



     12          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my



     13  hand and affixed my notarial seal this 30th day of



     14  August, 2023.



     15



     16



     17



     18



     19                     

                            

     20



     21  My Commission expires:

         December 5, 2024

     22
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1 APPEARANCES 1 CHAL RVAN KLUTZ:  Meeting of the Indiana

2 I NDIANA ELECTI ON COMM SSI ON. 2 Hection Coomissionis called to order. For

3 Zachary Klutz - Proxy for Paul Ckeson - Chairman 3 purposes of the record, | will note the foll owi ng
4 Suzannah Wlson Overholt - Vice Chairman 4 nenbers of the Commission are present: Mself,

5 Connie Lawson - Proxy for Litany Pyle - Menber 5 Zach Klutz, designated as proxy for Chairnan Paul

6 Mke Claytor - Proxy for Karen Cel estino-Horseman - 6 Ckeson; Vice Chairman Suzannah Wlson Overholt to

7 Menber 7 ny left; Mchael Qaytor, to ny left, designated as

8 8 proxy for Conmission Menber Karen Cel estino-

9 INDIANA ELECTI ON DI VI SI ON STAFF: 9 Horsenan; and to ny right, the honorabl e Connie
10 Angela M Nussneyer - Co-Director 10 Lawson, designated as proxy for Conmi ssion Menber
11 J. Bradley King - Co-Director 11 Litany Pyle.

12 Matthew Kochevar - Co-Counsel 12 A'so in attendance are Indiana B ection

13 Valerie Varycha - Co-Counsel 13 Division staff: Co-Drector Brad King and

14 14 Co-Director Angie Nussneyer, Co-General Counsels
15 15  Matthew Kochevar and Val erie \Mrycha.

16 16 Qur court reporter today is Maria W ol lier
17 17 from Stewart R chardson Deposition Services.

18 18 Just a housekeeping item | want to advise the
19 19  Commission nenbers and those present that we will
20 20 need to plan to stop our Commission business no

21 21 later than 2:30 p.m today.

22 22 Next itemon the agenda i s docunentation of

23 23 conpliance with Qpen Door Law | woul d request the
24 24 co-directors confirmthat the Conmission neeting

25 25 has been properly noticed as required by Qpen Door
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Page 5 Page 7
1 Law 1 M. LAMBON  Second.
2 MR KING M. Chairman, on behal f of nyself 2 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Hearing a notion and a
3 and Co-Director Nussmeyer, we certify that notice 3 second, is there any discussion?
4 of this meeting was properly given in accordance 4 Hearing none, all in favor say "Aye."
5 with Indiana's Qpen Door Law 5 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.
6 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Thank you, Brad. 6 MR CAYTCR  Aye.
7 The next itemon the agenda is the approval of | 7 M. LAVGCN  Aye.
8 our August 11, 2023, Conm ssion minutes. | 8 CHA RVAN KLUTZ:  (pposed " Nay. "
9 recogni ze the co-directors to present the mnutes 9 The notion carri es.
10 of the August 11, 2023, meeting. 10 The next itemon the agenda is the
11 MR KING M. Chairman, nenbers of the 11  adninistration of oath. Any person who plans to
12 Commission, on behal f of nyself and Co-Director 12 testify at today's neeting on any natter, please
13 Nussneyer, we have reviewed the mnutes and 13 stand if you're able to and respond "I do" upon the
14 recommend themto the Commission for your approval. |14 reading of the oath. And | recognize Matthew
15 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Accept a notion to approve. 15 Kochevar to adnmnister the oath.
16 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  So noved. 16 MR KOOHEVAR Pl ease raise your right hand.
17 MB. LAWGON  1'II second. 17 Pease say "I do" after recitation of the oath.
18 CHAl RVAN KLUTZ:  Hearing a second, all in 18 Do you sol ermly swear or affirm under the
19 favor say "Aye." 19 penalties of perjury, that the testinony you are
20 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye. 20 about to give to the Indiana Hection Conmssion is
21 MR CLAYTCR  Aye. 21 the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
22 M. LAVGON  Aye. 22 truth? Pease say "I do."
23 CHA RVAN KLUTZ:  (pposed. 23 ALL: | do.
24 The "ayes" have it and the notion to approve 24 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Ckay. The next itemon our
25 ninutes is adopted. 25 agenda is consideration of applications for

Page 6 Page 8
1 I's there consent fromthe Conm ssion nenbers 1 recertification of previously certified voting
2 for the Hection Division staff to use our 2 systens. Before we nove to formally consider the
3 signature stanps for any docunents approved by the 3 applications for approval of new versions of
4 Conmi ssion today? 4 previously certified voting systens and engi neering
5 VI CE CHAl RVAN OVERHOLT:  Consent . 5 change orders currently on our agenda today, |
6 MR CLAYTCR  (onsent. 6 would state for the record the Conmission will
7 M. LAWGON  Consent. 7 offer the opportunity for public conment regarding
8 CHAl RVAN KLUTZ:  Ckay. Next itemon the 8 each application for certification of a new version
9 agenda is the adoption of canpaign finance orders. 9 of the previously certified voting systens or
10 | recognize the co-directors to present the 10  engineering change orders that will be considered
11  canpaign finance orders 2023-200 t hrough 421 11 by our Commi ssion today.
12 reflecting the actions taken by the Conm ssion at 12 | woul d ask any person naking a comment to
13 the August 11, 2023, neeting. 13 assist our court reporter by identifying thensel ves
14 M KING M. Chairman, nenbers of the 14 and spelling their nanes for the record, and |
15 Commission, on behal f of nyself and Co-Director 15 renind everyone that no one shoul d be speaking at
16 Nussneyer, with thanks for our very diligent 16 the sane tine as another person who has al ready
17  canpaign finance staff menbers, Abbey Tayl or and 17  been recogni zed on the floor.
18 Mchell e Thonpson, who prepared these orders in the | 18 Due to our time constraints today, | woul d
19 week interval since the neeting at which the 19 also request that conmments or presentations be kept
20 Commission nmade its findings, we present these to 20 to 5 mnutes or |ess.
21 you and recommend themfor your approval . 21 Further, any person who w shes to present
22 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Thank you. 22 docunents or other evidence to the Conm ssion nust
23 I's there a notion to adopt canpaign finance 23 provide that material to Valerie Wrycha, who is
24 orders as presented? 24 sitting to ny right, to be preserved for the
25 MR CAYTCR So noved. 25 record, unless you have already subnitted those to
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Page 11

1 the Conmi ssion. 1 Linux G5 for the DS200. An upgraded suite of flash
2 Finally, in terns of procedure, the public 2 drivesis used in BVS 6.3.0.0, including the
3 wll have an opportunity to offer comments 3 introduction of YubiKeys, a physical two-factor
4 following the presentation of each itemby the 4 authentication method required to access the EMVS.
5 Voting Systens Techni cal Oversight Program VSTCP, 5 Findings and limtations: The DS200 and DS300
6 and their representatives. 6 scanners are produced w thout modemor network
7 Wth that, let's nove to our first election 7 hardware and are incapabl e of connecting to the
8 systemcertification, and that is the certification| 8 Internet. DS300 tabulators provide inprovements to
9 of BHection Systens & Software optical scan bal | ot 9 scanning and printing speeds conpared to the DS200.
10 card voting systemEVS 6.3.0.0. 10 HectionVre is individually licensed and can be
11 | now recogni ze the VSTCP staff to present its |11 configured to only support equipnent that is
12 report with respect to this systemand to confirm |12 approved for use in Indiana. EVS 6.3.0.0
13 that this voting systemhas passed the testing 13 introduces the YubiKey, a physical two-factor
14 conducted by VSTCP and all testing |aboratories, 14 authentication for accessing the EMS, adding
15 and confirmthat the systemconplies with Indiana |15 another layer of security.
16 law and with | EC Advi sory Qpinion 2022-08, if 16 There are no changes to accessibility in the
17  applicable. 17 EVS 6.3.0.0 systemfrompreviously certified
18 Before we begin with the report, | would ask 18 versions. ES&S denonstrated their EMB s
19 that each person here on behal f of VSTCP pl ease 19 adjudication capability to the VSTCP team during
20 introduce thensel ves. 20 field-testing. VSTCP determned the adj udication
21 MR CHATOl: Thank you, Conmissioner. M nane |21 capabilities conformwith Indiana | aw under
22 is Marc Chatot, Ma-r-c, Gh-a-t-o-t. | amthe 22 1C3-11-15-13.8. ES&S denonstrated their EMB s
23 interimproject manager, programnanager of VSTCGP |23  adjudication capability to the VSTCP team during
24 and the election systemcertification specialist. 24  field-testing. VSTCP determned the adj udication
25 DR KINSELLA' M nane is Chad Kinsell a, 25 capabilities conformwith Indiana | aw under

Page 10 Page 12
1 co-director of VSTCP. 1 1C3-11-15-13.8.
2 MR CHATOT: | will begin by reading our 2 VSTCP field test: Before the VSTCP field
3 recommendation for EVS6.3.0.0. The BVS6.3.0.0is | 3 test, VSTCP reviewed the VSTL reports submtted by
4 a paper-based end-to-end el ecti on managerent 4 Pro V&. This voting system underwent
5 system or EMS, that supports jurisdictions' 5 field-testing at Ball State University from
6 election needs by creating and maintaining a 6 My 15th through the 18th of 2023 by the VSTCP
7 central election database, formatting and printing 7 team The field test included software hash
8 ballots, programmng el ection equi pnent, and 8 verification of all required el ements of the
9 collecting and reporting results. This systemwas 9 Indiana statutes regarding voting systens as wel |
10 certified by the US. Hection Assistance 10 as an ADA conpliance eval uation. Mck el ections,
11 Conmission on Novenber 17, 2022, and is conpliant 11  including the | ED approved test case scenarios for
12 with the Voluntary Voting System Qui del i nes, 12 straight party voting, were conducted as part of
13 WSG1.0. Changes and najor features being 13 the field test for this voting system
14 introduced by this voting systemare the DS300 pol | | 14 Recommendation: On the basis of VSTCP s
15  place scanner and tabul ator, the DS950 precinct 15 review and evaluation, we find that the voting
16  scanner, and several upgrades to security. 16  systemreferenced herein, and with the Scope of
17 The DSO50 will eventual ly replace the DS850 as | 17  Certification, meets all the requirenments of the
18 internal parts for the DS850 go end-of-life in 18 Indiana Code for use in the state of Indiana. This
19 their production cycle. The DS950 will use all new |19 finding includes conpliance with |egal requirements
20 internal parts allowing for greater performance and |20 for voters with disabilities. VSTCP recomends
21 longevity. A security and shipping inprovenent for |21 approval of EVS 6.3.0.0.
22 the DS950 is flush security tag recesses on the 22 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.
23 cabinet, preventing snags and inadvertent security |23 For purposes of just commencing the Conmi ssion
24  seal breaks during travel. EVS 6.3.0.0 introduces |24 discussion on this matter, | nove to approve the
25 standard firnware for all devices and a new 25 application submtted for approval of this election






Pages 13..16

Page 13

Page 15

1 systemas conplying with Indiana | aw and | ndi ana 1 to keep pausing. So if you're thinking about

2 Hection Conm ssion Advisory (pinion 2022-08, as 2 speaking at any point, if you want to stand up and
3 applicable. 3 raise your right hand.

4 I's there a second? 4 Sir, raise your right hand as well. Say "I

5 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHQLT:  Second. 5 do" after recitation of the oath.

6 CHAI RVMAN KLUTZ: Al in favor. 6 Do you sol emnly swear or affirm under the

7 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye. 7 penalties of perjury, that the testinony you are

8 MR CLAYTCR  Aye. 8 about to give to the Indiana B ection Conmission is

9 MB. LAVGON  Aye. 9 the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
10 VI CE CHAl RVAN OVERHOLT:  That's just for 10 truth? Please say "I do."

11  discussion, right? 11 ALL: | do.

12 CHAI RVMAN KLUTZ: Right. This is for purposes |12 MR KOOHEVAR  Thank you.

13 of discussion. 13 MR LINN | just have several points |'d |ike

14 So now we'll ask if there's any representative |14 to nake.

15 fromthe vendor that would like to talk following 15 THE REPCRTER  Sir, could you state your name

16 the report. 16 and spell it for ne, please.

17 MR MANGANARO M nane is Mark Manganaro, 17 MR LINN Yes. M name is D Edward,

18 Ma-n-g-a-n-a-r-o. |'mthe Indiana state 18 Ed-wa-r-d, Linn, L-i-n-n, and | just have several

19 certification manager. | just basically -- 19 renmarks 1'd like to nake.

20 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Sir, can you just take the 20 | don't knowif all these changes to the DS200

21 oath real quick for us. 21 scanner were addressed, but this is going back

22 MR MANGANARQ  (Ch, sure. 22 several years ago, and this is a web article from

23 CHAl RVAN KLUTZ:  Thanks. 23 \VentureBeat, "Optical scanning nmachines are

24 MR KOOHEVAR  Just raise your right hand. 24 susceptible to mscounting U S voter ballots."”

25 Say "l do" after recitation of the oath. 25 And looking at this, there's several things that
Page 14 Page 16

1 Do you sol emnly swear or affirmthat the 1 this device does under the cover of darkness, and |

2 testinony you are about to give to the Indiana 2 don't think that's a good thing.

3 Hection Conmissionis the truth, the whole truth, 3 W want transparent elections. And | know you
4 and nothing but the truth? Pl ease say "I do." 4 guys at Ball State think you do a really good j ob,

5 MR MANNGANARQ | do. 5 and you probably do the best job you possibly can,

6 MR KOOHEVAR  Thank you. 6 and I'mnot refuting anything you just said. Al

7 MR MAWGANARQ And, again, Mark Manganaro 7 1'msaying is, these are black boxes, and they run

8 with Hection Systens & Software. Just wanted to 8 by algorithns, and al gorithns can be nani pul at ed.

9 thank the VSTCP team | knowthey had quite a few | 9 And they can be nanipul ated by sonebody comng in
10 systemtesting to do, poll books, EQXs. Marc did 10 and putting a device into the machi ne and hacking
11 an outstanding job getting the certification done 11 the nachine.

12 inatinely manner. |'mhere today if you guys 12 If you think that's not possible, we just had
13 have any other questions regarding the systemthat |13 a nunber of different hacks to our system | just
14 VSTCP can't address. Thank you. 14 had ny information hacked at the very secure

15 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Thank you. 15 banki ng system and they gave ne two free years of
16 At this time I'Il recogni ze anyone fromthe 16 credit nonitoring. So this has happened to nme when
17 public that would |ike to speak. 17 | was at Purdue University. It was hacked; ny

18 MR LINN 1'd like to speak. 18 social security and personal infornation was

19 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ: Ve just need you to take the |19 hacked. So people that say these are the nost

20 oath, sir. 20 secure elections in history, all that is bunk, in
21 MR LINN  Sure. 21  ny opinion. Ckay?

22 MR KOOHEVAR |'mgoing to ask, through the 22 Now, can | give you irrefutable evidence of

23 (Chair, if there's anyone el se in the audi ence who 23 that? No. But what |'msaying is the citizens are
24 also has any inclination to speak, it would be 24 not very pleased with the way the elections are

25 better to have you sworn right now so we don't have |25 being done. V'd like to go back to paper ballots
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1 the way they used to be done. \¢'d like to have 1 opinion, to do that.
2 these docunents seal ed, not scanned, because 2 W need transparent elections. \¢ don't need
3 scanning these docurents, |ike they've shown in 3 elections done under the cover of darkness. W
4 Ceorgia, they can be deleted. So we want the real 4 don't need el ections done under proprietary
5 ballots. W don't want virtual ballots. V¢ want 5 software. VW& want things done in the open, under
6 real ballots, and we want ballots that are scanned 6 the clear transparent daylight, not under the cover
7 by hunman eyes, not by machines that can be rigged 7 of darknesses into a black box.
8 or algorithns changed under the cover of darkness 8 CHA RVAN KLUTZ:  Thank you, sir.
9 to give fraudulent results. 9 MR LINN Thank you. | yield ny tine.
10 You nay say, well, that's not possible, but it |10 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Anyone el se to speak on this?
11 is possible because these people say it is. 11 Yes, ma'am P ease state your nane.
12 Anytinme you have a conputer, it can be hacked. 12 M5. STAW M nane is Jennifer Stamm
13 Anytime you have a conputer, the algorithms can be |13 St-a-mm like Mary. Thank you for the
14 changed. That's a fact. Inny opinion, there's no |14 opportunity. | didn't know!| was going to be here.
15 question. Ckay? 15 | just found out about the neeting earlier today.
16 And so |'ve got several docurents here |'d 16 | don't knowif I'Il be as eloguent as the
17 like to give you. (ne is the VentureBeat article 17 gentlenan before ne, so | appreciate your tine.
18 having to do with the fact that these are 18 | amsinply here just as a representative of a
19 susceptible in this county. And | don't know i f 19 lot of people that are like nyself, that are very
20 all these changes have been done on the nachine, 20 distrusting of how we've been doing it, the
21 but there is one thing that's really, to ne, very 21 nachines. | too want paper ballots. | too see
22 concerning, and that is the fact that they said 22 that there is a pathway toit. | too see that it
23 that these machines aren't capable of being hacked |23 would take -- we even know how many vol unteers it
24 to the point where an individual would attain 24  would take to actually get that done. | ampart of
25 adnministrative control over the nmachine, which 25 Indiana First Action group. The canvassing that
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1 means they can change anything. They can change 1 was done through the voter rolls that we obtained
2 anything on the machi ne software-w se, what have 2 through our own Secretary of State reveal ed sone
3 you. They can delete votes. They can do whatever 3 very astoni shing and very disturbing infornation
4 they want. 4 about the history of our elections. Particularly
5 Now, here, in fact, there's a documentation 5 this one was infornation fromthe 2020 el ecti on.
6 fromGeorgia where it says that a total of 6 | don't knowif I'mallowed to ask a question,
7 1.7 nllion images of the ballots were del eted. 7 but I will, because it seens |ike absol ute conmon
8 Andsol put that inthe record as well. 8 sense that we would know, with the technol ogy that
9 1.7 nllion ballot inmages were destroyed. 9 we have today, that it is very easily hackable. Ve
10 You say, well, they can just go and take a 10 seeit all thetime inthe news. If you actually
11 look at the real ballots. Well, the thing about it |11 look on a search engine that's outside of Gogl e,
12 is, in Georgia they said no, you can't do that, 12 you will find all kinds of infornation that
13 that's private infornmation. And we've had that 13 actually refutes what a lot of the experts on the
14 situation happen here in Indiana where we've had 14 television are telling us. V're not stupid. Ve
15 voter integrity groups saying we want to take a 15  know And we the people are kind of tired of not
16 look at the cast vote records. Not only were they |16 feeling |ike we're being heard by the peopl e that
17 stopped at the election board level, they were also |17 are in the seats making these decisions, so | say
18 stopped at the state legislature |evel because they |18 this respectful ly.
19 said these cast vote records were confidential 19 Do any of you people believe -- and | say this
20 information. In fact, other states find that 20 respectfully -- that our systens can be hacked,
21 they're not -- 21 that there is an opportunity for nefarious
22 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  You have 30 seconds. 22 activities and that they' re not absol utely as safe
23 MR LINN -- because there's no identifying 23 and sound as we've been prom sed over the years?
24 information in those cast vote records that woul d 24 Because | knowthat's not true, and | woul d hate to
25 make themconfidential. It's a hoax, in ny 25  believe that I'msitting here in a roonful of
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1 professionals that would actually say no, you're 1 security, nmany conpanies take out insurance
2 wong, they are safe and secure, there's absolutely | 2 policies to nitigate the financial inpacts of a
3 no way that anything can happen to any of your 3 breach. Soif it were secure, you woul dn't be
4 votes. Because, to me, that's just an ignorant 4 getting an insurance policy. It is inportant to
5 answer, and | don't mean any disrespect by it. 5 also consider the so-called Poul sen's | aw that
6 But | just do want to say that | represent a 6 states that information is secure when it costs
7 lot of people. There are thousands and thousands 7 noretoget it thanit's worth. The role of
8 and thousands and thousands of peopl e that feel 8 nanagenent is to work with IT functions to make it
9 like | do but have no idea where the neetings are, 9 harder to break inthanit is worth.
10 howto express an opinion. |'mnot as eloquent as |10 Listen, we all have stupendous intentions, but
11 | would like to be. There was a |ot of code. 11  security costs, and governments across the country,
12 There was a lot of .06.3.0 and a lot of acronyns 12 you guys are doing the absol ute best you can, but
13 and things that probably are just a little bit over |13 it costs hundreds of mllions of dollars. You' ve
14 ny head as far as that. But one thing | will say | |14 got multinational conpanies worth trillions that
15 do understand is that systens are hackable. And 15 cannot secure their systens.
16 what we sawin the 2020 el ections, the truth is out |16 Finally, | want you guys to al so have this
17 there. It's being very much hid fromus by 17 fromthe same textbook. Forgive me. | don't have
18 minstreamnmedia, and we all knowthat. Anybody 18 the exact page on these, but | can get them Wile
19 wth any common sense recogni zes that. They were 19 there's not been any evidence of hacking -- so back
20 not safe and secure, they are not safe and secure, |20 in 2017, they did a little kind of experiment.
21 and paper ballots is what we want. 21  Wiile there's not been any evidence of hackers
22 So | just wanted you all to hear that | amone |22 tanpering with voting results in the United Sates,
23 opinion of many. Wether that goes anywhere or 23 attendees at a 2017 bl ack hat hacker -- so a bl ack
24 not, | just wanted to be heard, and | thank you for |24 hat, there's all kind of terns; they get paidto
25 your tine. 25 kind of try to hack into sonething; they're just
Page 22 Page 24
1 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Thank you. 1 good folks with conputers -- conference was invited
2 MB. STAW  Thank you. 2 totryto break into 30 voting machines
3 MB. QOTTON  H there. M nane is G ndy 3 representing several types in popular use in the
4 (otton, Gi-n-d-y, Go-t-t-o-n, asin Nancy. | do | 4 2016 election. The result of the conpetition was
5 have a handout for everybody. GCkay? Just forgive 5 not encouraging, as the hackers broke into all the
6 nme |'vegot toread fromthe bottomof it. | 6 nmachines in under two hours. (ne nachi ne had an
7 tried -- it's the very last paragraph. | got very 7 unpatched Wndows XP vul nerability that had been
8 fortunate. | amin a graduate study programin the | 8 known for 14 years. Governnmental agencies in the
9 state of Indiana, phenonenal to our city. | just 9 US need to catch up on voting security.
10 happened to end this session. So up at the topis |10 Quys, we all have phenonenal intentions. |
11 your reference. Al of that information is the 11 don't deny that. | know you guys want what we
12 guys that are super smart that wote the textbook. |12 want. It's extremely expensive. You' ve got to
13 It just so happened to be in ny infornation systens | 13  have technical people that you pay a ton of noney,
14 class, so | just happened to take note of it. 14 and every year it will go up and up and up. If we
15 It starts out with an inpossibility of 15 have a systemperhaps out there and they are
16 100 percent security, because these guys wote 16 inplementing in the Uhited States everywhere --
17  textbooks, they put sone time and effort. Let's go |17 it's happening every day as the days tick by --
18 to the last paragraph. Back in'95 -- soit's not |18 that can save you guys noney and do just as good a
19 anewthing -- L. Dain Gary, former nanager of the |19 job, if not better, let's consider it. [|'mnot
20 US. Conputer Emergency Response Team CERT, in 20 saying -- you can't stop everything in a second and
21  Pittsburgh, appeared on an episode of 60 M nutes 21 change everything in a second. That's not what |'m
22 and let the public in on an unpleasant... You 22 asking. |1'masking you to think about it, ponder
23 cannot nake a conputer secure. You can reduce the |23 it, and maybe, as the days go by, we can start
24 risk, but you can't guarantee the security. 24 noving in that direction. Thank you.
25 Because of the futility of seeking 100 percent 25 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.
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1 Any further comment on this matter for this 1 out there has all your personal informnation?
2 voting systen? 2 You have put your social security nunber in
3 MR KOOHEVAR | have to swear you in. Just 3 there when you sign up to be a poll worker, so the
4 raise your right hand. Say "I do" after recitation | 4 social security nunber tells you everything. So
5 of the oath. 5 they know everything about nme. | walk around every
6 Do you sol enmnly swear or affirm under the 6 day wondering who is looking at me. That's not a
7 penalties of perjury, that the testinony you are 7 good way to be free in a country that gives us the
8 about to give to the Indiana B ection Conmissionis | 8 right to have our liberty. | nean, it's just
9 the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the 9 crazy. And | know and these |adies know too, we
10 truth? 10 know it was done, what, in Johnson County, Lake
11 MB. FOX So help nme God, | affirm 11 County, and Marion County.
12 MR KOOHEVAR  Thank you. 12 MR LINN Alen Gounty as well.
13 MB. FOX You want ne to sign in? 13 MB. FOX Yeah. They chose the |argest
14 M5, WARYCHA:  Yes, pl ease. 14 counties so they could -- | don't know what they
15 MB. FOX M nane is Rochelle Fox, and | -- 15 want with our information, but | know they do have
16 THE REPCRTER  Goul d you spel | it, please. 16 it. And that's why | will never work the polls
17 MB. FOX Ro-c-h-e-1-1-e, Fro-x. And | know |17 again. | wll volunteer and be a watcher, but |'m
18 these ladies, and | know exactly what they're 18 never working themagain, because this was done in
19 talking about. It kind of upset ne when | got the |19 2020. | didn't find out until this year, and I
20 notice about the optical scan mainly because | 20 worked the 2022 election as a pol| worker. So can
21 don't know where that scan ends up. | know where 21 you inagine that? | nean, | don't feel confortable
22 it begins, but | have no idea of where it's going. |22 with that.
23 And the reason why |'msaying that is because |23 And, like | said, you' re scanning ny eye,
24 | amone of the victins of Konnech. | don't know |24 which means that you're getting ny nedical
25 if you know about Konnech or not. It's -- what is |25 information. You already have enough from Konnech,
Page 26 Page 28
1 it? It works with elections, and it's out -- it 1 so what nore can you ask fromme? |'mjust one
2 cones fromCalifornia, and they went all around the | 2 person here inthis Lhited States, but who knows
3 country to -- | don't know -- connect somehow But | 3 how nmuch that ended up connecting ne to other
4 what they did do without telling us was they took 4  people, to other people in other places that 1 go
5 our private information. They took our private 5 and things that | do. | just so happen to be, like
6 information in three different counties here in 6 sone of the people here, a delegate in Marion
7 Indiana for the poll workers. Wen | registered 7 County. Sothat's not a safe place to be, and |
8 innocently to work as a poll worker, they were 8 don't trust using much of the Internet anynore
9 taking ny information, which went from Konnech to 9 because of that.
10 CGalifornia to Cina. 10 Wiereas, in contrast to that, a paper ballot
11 So if they can do that with me typing ny 11 like we're really pushing is what? It has a
12 information in, | can't even begin to inagine what |12 watermark onit. You verify your IDin front of a
13 they'd do with an eye scan. They al ready have ny 13 person with your signature, and, | nean, they can
14 information. | don't know howto get it back. | 14 see your face. Unless you' re a clone, they know
15 would like to do a class-action suit with other 15 exactly who you are. And then you sit down at the
16  peopl e and sue Konnech, but it won't get ny 16 end of the day |ike we've done -- that's another
17 information returned to me. It's out there. I've |17 thing | thought about too. Did you guys know that,
18 gotten phone calls -- and this is the honest to God |18 in order to work the polls, you have to be there at
19 truth -- fromplaces on the other side of the 19 4:30 in the norning? Did you know you get off at,
20 world. They don't talk to me. They just call me. |20 like, 8:00 at night? That's one day, which is the
21 1've gotten phone calls with Chinese or sone kind 21 longest day of the year for me really, and at the
22 of witing on the nunber. Just crazy. And | don't |22 end of the day, there's no guarantee that what
23 know who is trying to communicate with ne, if 23 we've done has been right because we don't know
24 they're listening in on ne or what. Wuld you all |24 which ballots are correct and which aren't because
25 like to live like that, knowi ng that sone stranger |25 they always have -- what do you call it? --
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1 provisional ballots. 1 nowis really an argunent to a different body, in
2 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  You have 30 seconds, 2 nyopinion. |'mnot saying | agree or | disagree
3 Ms. Fox. 3 wthyou, and | appreciate you comng and letting
4 MB. FOX kay. I'msorry. | didn't know 4 us know how you feel. | just don't feel like | can
5 about the tinme limt. 5 address what you're asking for.
6 But anyway, | aminpeding -- not inpeding. | 6 UN DENTI FI ED SPEAKER  Who can?
7 just ask that you pl ease reconsider what you're 7 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  The public comment is cl osed
8 thinking about. V¢ all love our privacy, and once 8 for this one.
9 we start scanning stuff across the Internet, it's 9 So | just wanted to I et you know we do
10 bad enough with the data -- 10 appreciate your comments; | just don't feel like
11 (i rer) 11  we're the body who coul d provide you any remedy.
12 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Thank you. 12 MB. LAWGCN | might just add as well that |
13 M. FOX You're wvel cone. 13 believe VSTCP nentioned that the scanners -- now,
14 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Any further comment? 14  these scanners are scanning the paper ballots and
15 MR LINN | have one nore coment, if 15 they are not connected to the Internet.
16  possible. 16 MR CHATOT: That is correct.
17 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  You' ve al ready used your 17 MB. LAWMBON And that's exactly what | heard.
18 5 nminutes, sir. 18 MR CHATOT: That is correct. They have no
19 MR LINN | used all 5 nminutes? 19  capability.
20 CHA RVAN KLUTZ:  You did. Thank you. 20 MB. LAWBON  They're not scanning the eye in
21 Wth that, is there any further discussion by |21 any way, shape, or form
22 the Cormission nenbers? 22 MR CHATOT: Correct.
23 VICE GHA RVAN O/ERHOLT:  Véll, | wanted to 23 M5. LAWMGCON  And those ballots, from
24 clarify that, when we're talking optical scanning, |24 experience, | knowthose ballots are then availabl e
25 that we're not tal king about any kind of retinal 25 for arecount or an audit, those actual paper
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1 scanning. 1 ballots.
2 MR CHATOT: Correct. 2 MR CHATOT: Yes. VSTCP al so conducts
3 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  (ptical neans it's 3 postelection audits.
4 the manner in which the nachine scans the ballots. 4 MB. LAWMGON  And | just might add one nore
5 It has nothing to do with scanning anyone's eyeball | 5 thing for you all to think about, because | do
6 inany way, shape, or form 6 appreciate your remarks as well. | served as a
7 MR CHATO: Right. It takes an image of both | 7 county clerk for eight years, and the one tine we
8 sides of the ballot. 8 had problens with any election results is when some
9 VICE GHA RVAN O/ERHOLT: Right. And | 9 poll workers |ost some paper ballots.
10 respectful ly disagree with the assessnent of our 10 Intentionally? Possibly. But that was the one
11 election systens, but that's ny only conment. 11 tine as a county clerk that | had any issues with
12 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ: M/ conment woul d be j ust 12 any election results was peopl e | osing paper
13 directed to the comments, the public comment we 13 ballots. So --
14 heard. | guess what we're charged with today is to |14 UN DENTI FI ED SPEAKER  So |'ve got a question
15 determne whether the systens have been tested to 15  now
16 ensure that they're conpliant with existing | aw 16 CHAI RMAN KLUTZ:  The public hearing is cl osed
17 not to deternine whether we shoul d use -- change 17 for this particular natter.
18 the lawto deternine what we have now and go to 18 I's there any further discussion?
19  paper ballots. 19 Hearing none, | will ask all in favor of the
20 So, for me, if we have a professional 20 nmotion on the floor say "Aye."
21 organization that's trained and experienced in 21 VI CE CHAl RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.
22 testing machines to ensure conpliance with lawand |22 MR CAYTCR  Aye.
23 any applicable advisory opinion and they say it is, |23 M. LAVGON  Aye.
24 | feel a duty to approve that. The change of 24 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Qpposed "Nay. "
25 election systens frompaper ballot to what we have |25 The "ayes" have it, and the motion to
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1 recertify this voting systemfor the termspecified | 1 only applies to the specific Uisyn QpenH ect
2 by statute, subject to any limtations set forthin| 2 wvoting systemnotated in the table above. Uhisyn
3 the VSTCP report or inposed by the Commssion, is 3  \Woting Solutions and QpenH ect are EAC certified,
4 adopted. 4 and the EQO was approved by the EAC
5 VI CE CHA RMAN OVERHOLT:  To clarify, this was 5 Wth this EQQ QpenHect will nove from2.2 to
6 anewcertification, not a recertification? 6 2.2.1, and the new software version for O/Owll be
7 MB. NUSSMEYER It's a new system 7 2.2.1. VSICP recomrends approval of EQO 17050.
8 CHAN RVAN KLUTZ.  Did | say recertification? 8 CHA RVAN KLUTZ:  Ckay. For purposes of
9 I'msorry. 9 comenci ng Conmi ssion discussion on this natter, |
10 VI CE CHAl RVAN OVERHOLT:  Yes. 10 nove to approve the application subnitted for
11 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Ckay. Move to the next. 11 approval of this engineering change order as
12 Next matter before the Commission is Unisyn 12 conplying with Indiana | aw and I ndiana H ection
13 QpenH ect optical scan voting system Engi neering 13 Commi ssi on Advi sory Qpinion 2022-08, if applicable.
14 Change Qrder 17050. 14 I's there a second?
15 | now recogni ze the VSTCP staff to present its |15 MR CLAYTCR  Second.
16 report and confirmthat the engineering change 16 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Wth that, | will ask if
17 order for this previously approved voting system 17 there's any representative of the vendor to have
18 has passed the testing conducted by VSTCP and all 18 any coments.
19 testing laboratories, and confirmthat the system 19 MS. BUCHANAN  Janet Buchanan,
20 conplies with Indiana | aw and with | EC Advisory 20 Bu-c-h-a-n-a-n, RBBM No additional conments.
21 Qpinion 2022-08, if applicable. 21 Thank you.
22 MR CHATOl: Thank you, M. Chairman. 22 CHAl RVAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.
23 EQO 17050 applies to voting system 23 Any nenber of the public with respect to this
24 penHect 2.2.1, and it affects the conponent of 24 one?
25 the (penH ect optical scan, also called OQQ 25 Any further discussion by the Commission?
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1 Description of change is that this change prevents 1 Hearing none, | will ask for a vote on the
2 aconcurrent closed process on the O/Q It was 2 pending notion. Al in favor say "Aye."
3 observed that when "0 ose" cards are used to 3 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.
4 initiate the close session process on the O/O that 4 MR CAYTCR  Aye.
5 when the "Aose" card was returned to the operator, | 5 MB. LAVGON  Aye.
6 the scanner was not disabled. This opened the 6 CHA RVAN KLUTZ:  (pposed " Nay. "
7 possibility for the "Qose" card to be entered a 7 The "ayes" have it.
8 second tine and the potential of starting a second 8 Ckay. Next itemis Unisyn QpenH ect optical
9 close process. 9 scan voting system2.2.2 Engineering Change O ders
10 Depending on the timng of these processes, if |10 1025, 1026, 1027, 3476, and 17059.
11 they occur concurrently, as opposed to 11 | again recogni ze the VSTCP staff to present
12 sequentially, the close session process will 12 the report and confirmthat the five engineering
13 generate a report which shows doubl ed vote counts 13 change orders for this previously approved voting
14 and produces a tally.xm file that cannot be 14 system which woul d be designated as Version 2.2.2,
15 uploaded into the central tabulation system This |15 have passed the testing conducted by VSTCP and al |
16  change will disable the scanner after the "d ose" 16 testing laboratories, and to confirmthat the
17 card is returned, preventing the opportunity of 17  systemconplies with Indiana | aw and | EC Advi sory
18 creating a second close session process. (penHect |18  (pinion 2022-08, if applicable.
19 wll nove fromVersion 2.2 to 2.2.1, and the new 19 MR CHATOl: Thank you, M. Chairnan.
20 software version for the O/Owll be 2.2. 1. 20 I will read descriptions of each EQO and our
21 Menbers of the VSTCP team have reviewed the 21 reconmendati on.
22 EQO0 17050, including the supporting docunents and 22 EQO 1025, applying to voting system
23 \oting System Testing Laboratory reports. VSTCP 23 (penH ect 2.2, the conponent is transport nedia.
24 finds the EQO conplies with the requirenents for 24  EQD0 1025 adds a new 4 B USB flash drive, Mdel
25 de nminims changes to hardware conponents. The EQO|25 3SE-4GB, as a replacenment for the current 1 B
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1 part, Mdel 2SE-1@, due to the current nodel no 1 systemand the FreedomVote Scan conponent, or FVS.

2 longer being comwercially available for purchase. 2 EQ00 17059 repl aces the plastic ballot diverter with

3 Added Innodi sk Mdel 3SE-4@ and Vendor Part MNunber | 3 a higher quality netal replacenment. The current

4  DEUAL- 04d 61SCASB-B088. Renoved | nnodi sk Model 4 ballot diverter is made fromflat plastic. The

5 2SE 1@ and Vendor Part Nunber DEUAL-01Q 72ACLSB- 5 process of repeatedly adding the designated curve

6 B08S. 6 was not perfected; therefore, nultiple vendors

7 EQO 1026 applies to voting system 7 reported to Unisyn they were unable to reproduce it

8 (penBHect 2.2. Conponent is fan for Freedom Vote 8 repeatedly. To elimnate the issue, Lhisynis

9 Scan, or VS EQD 1026 adds a new fan, 9 replacing the heat-fornmed ABS plastic sheet part

10  Anode JZ-0001, as a replacenent for the current 10 with a drop-in replacenent part requiring no

11 part, Intel E97379-003, due to the current model no | 11  additional changes to inplenent. The current ABS

12 longer being conmercially available for purchase. 12 plastic sheet part will be replaced with a bent

13 The fan being updated is an internal part for the 13 alumnumpart which is an exact natch for the

14 Freedom Vote Scan conponent . 14 forner plastic piece and is nore easily repeated

15 EQO 1027, applying to voting system 15 during the manufacturing process.

16  QpenHect 2.2, another fan for Freedom \Vote Scan, 16 Menbers of the VSTCP team have reviewed the

17 FVS ECD 1027 is an update to alternate comercial |17 EQ3' supporting docunents and the Voting System

18  of f-the-shel f conponents, nemory nodul e and USB 18 Test Laboratory reports. VSTCP finds these EQOs

19 flash drive, due to current parts no |onger being 19  conply with the requirenments for de mnims changes

20 comercially available. Both alternative 20 to hardware conponents. These EQGs only apply to

21 conponents used with the FreedomVote Scan are the |21 the specific Unisyn QpenH ect 2.2 voting systens

22 sane manufacturer, form fit, and function. Added |22 notated in the table above. Uisyn QpenH ect 2.2

23 DDR 2400 Menory Modul e as an alternative conponent |23 is Hection Assistance Commission certified, and

24 for CT4GISFS824A 24 the EQX>s were al so approved by the EAC

25 EQO 3476, applying to voting system 25 VSTCP recomrends approval of EQ3s 1025, 1026,
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1 (penH ect 2.2, conponent (penH ect voting optical, 1 1027, 3476, and 1059 updating QpenHect 2.2 to

2 or OO EQO 3476 is an O/O nodification that 2 (penHect 2.2.2.

3 addresses the possibility of inserting a ballot 3 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Thank you. Could you clarify

4  during the transition to jamwed ball ot handling on 4 the last. Wés it 17059?

5 the O/Q This introduces a potential race 5 MR CHATOT: 17059, vyes.

6 condition that could result in a cast ballot being 6 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Ckay. At this tinme I'll

7 returned to the user. This proposal enconpasses 7 recogni ze any vendor representative who has any

8 nmnor changes to six files, extending the 8 coments.

9 inplenentation of nethods to remove and restore the | 9 Seei ng none, any menber of the public for

10 reference to the nodul e that accepts ballot data in |10 additional comment?

11 the event of a jamerror code fromthe scanner and |11 Seeing none, any further discussion by the

12 restores it when the jamcondition is no | onger 12 Conmi ssi on?

13 active. 13 VI CE GHA RVAN OVERHCLT:  No.

14 Per Unisyn, this was originally inplenented in |14 CHAl RVAN KLUTZ:  Seeing none, all in favor say

15 the AbstractReaderQient.java file but was 15  "Aye."

16  reinplenmented as two nethods in ReaderDriver.java, |16 VI CE CHAl RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.

17  hi deReadLi stener and restoreReadLi stener, so it 17 MR CAYTCR  Aye.

18 could be used by multiple modul es. An additional 18 M. LAVGON  Aye.

19 flag and del ay were added to ensure no data is sent |19 CHAI RVMAN KLUTZ:  Nay?

20 fromthe scanner to the software while the jamis 20 The "ayes" have it. The notion passes.

21 being handl ed. 21 W& now nove to our final election system

22 Products affected are CpenH ect voting 22 certification which is McroVote direct record

23 optical, O/Q Version 2.2.1. Per Uhisyn, the new 23 electronic voting systemlInfinity 4.4-1N EM 4-3A

24 software version for the O/Owll now be 2.2.2. 24 EVB 4.1, EMS 4-0B Engineering Change Orders 136 and

25 EQO 17059 applies to the CpenH ect 2.2 voting |25 137.
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Page 43

1 "1l now recogni ze VSTCP to present its report | 1 recomrendi ng approval; correct? You didn't read

2 and to confirmthat the engineering change orders 2 that last one.

3 for these two versions of the previously approved 3 MR CHATOT: You're right. 1'mso sorry.

4 voting system which woul d be designated as 4 VSTCP recommends approval for EQXs 136 and 137.

5 Infinity Revision E1 and Infinity WPAT Revision 5 Yes.

6 A1, have passed the testing conducted by VSTCP and | 6 VI CE CHA RMAN OVERHOLT:  Just a little

7 all testing |aboratories, and to confirmthat the 7 mnor...

8 systemconplies with Indiana |aw and with | ndi ana 8 CHA RVAN KLUTZ: V¢ al ways |ike to have that

9 Hection Commi ssion Advisory Qpinion 2022-08, if 9 on record.

10 applicable. 10 MR CHATOT: Thank you for the rennder.

11 MR CHATOT: Thank you, M. Chairnan. 11 CHAI RVMAN KLUTZ:  Wth that, I'Il recognize any

12 EON 136 applies to voting systens EMS 4.4-1IN |12  vendor representative who woul d |ike to speak on

13 EV54.3-A EM5 4.1, and EM5 4.0B.  The conponent 13  this matter.

14 affected is the Infinity Revision EL panel and the |14 Seei ng none, any nenber of the public who

15 WPAT Revision Al. The current Infinity, 15 would like to speak on this matter?

16 Revision E display and smart card reader and 16 Seeing none, any further discussion by the

17 WPAT, Revision A internal serial connector and 17 Commi ssi on nenbers?

18 capacitor on the port switching PCB are end-of-life |18 Hearing none, all in favor of the pending

19 wth suppliers. EON 136 is a nodification to 19 notion say "Aye."

20 repl ace these conponents with equival ent parts. 20 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.

21 The nodification is conpatible with all system 21 MR CAYTCR  Aye.

22 hardware and software. There is no form fit, or 22 M. LAVBON  Aye.

23 function change. 23 CHAl RVAN KLUTZ:  (pposed " Nay. "

24 EON 137 applies to voting systens EMB 4.4-IN |24 The "ayes" have it, and the notion carries.

25 BB 4.3-A EM5 4.1, and EMS 4.0B.  The conponent is |25 The I ndi ana H ection Comm ssion has fini shed
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1 the All-In-Cne Voting Station Booth. ECN 137 1 its business for the day. Is there a notion to

2 replaces the netal ADA RI45 coupl er housing nounted | 2 adjourn?

3 inthe Al-In-One Voting Station Booth with a 3 M5, LAWGON  So noved.

4 shielded plastic RI45 coupl er housing, Part Nunber 4 CHA RVAN KLUTZ:  Second?

5 RI45M25Z0-6A to elinmnate susceptibility to 5 MR CQLAYTCR  Second.

6 electrostatic disruption. The coupler and nol ded 6 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  Hol d on a second.

7 nmounting plate will be attached to the booth using 7 MR KOOHEVAR  For Unisyn and McroVote,

8 three nachine screws with a Loctite on the threads 8 technically you didn't offer a motion. | would

9 to secure the plate during transport and storage. 9 recomend setting for the record before we go hone.

10  The coupl er provides a convenient way to attach a 10 M5. NUSSMEYER For Uhisyn, | have that you

11  Doubl eTal k text-to-speech reader or tally tape 11 did offer the notion. It was for No. 6, which they

12 printer to the WPAT or Infinity panel. There is 12 did 6 and 7 together. It's No. 81 don't recall a

13 no form fit, or function change. ECN 137 is 13 notion being nade for. He presented themtoget her.

14 conpatible with all systemhardware and sof tware. 14 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  For the Unhi syn QpenH ect

15 Menbers of the VSTCP team have reviewed the 15 optical scan voting system Engineering Change O der

16 EQX>' supporting docunents and VSTL reports. VSTCP |16  17050?

17 finds these EQGs conply with the requirenents for 17 VICE CHAL RVAN OVERHOLT:  No. | think this

18 de minims, or nmnor, changes to hardware 18 last one is what you' re talking about.

19  conponents as there is no change to form fit, or 19 M5. NUSSMEYER So | have recorded a notion

20 function. The EQ3s only apply to the specific 20 for 17050. You took 17050, which is ItemNo. 6 on

21  McroVote voting systens notated in the table 21 the agenda, and No. 7, those engineering change

22 above. The McroVote EMS 4.4-INis EAC certified, 22 orders. | have what is inthe binder. So No. 6is

23 and the EG>s were approved by the EAC 23 Engineering Change Order 1050, which is the Unisyn

24 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  Thank you. 24 (penH ect. MNunber 7 is Unisyn Qpen Hect optical

25 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  And you're 25 scan system2.2.2 Engineering Change Qrders 1025
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1 and so forth. | actually have -- | assuned you 1 M. LAVGON  Aye.
2 took those under the sane notion, but for the 2 CHA RVAN KLUTZ:  Motion carries. W're
3 McroVote, this last one, those two change orders, 3 adjourned.
4 | don't have recorded in ny notes, which does not 4 (The I'ndiana E ection GComm ssion Public
5 nmean it did not happen, but that there's not -- 5 Session was adjourned at 1:53 p.m)
6 CHAI RVAN KLUTZ:  So for this |ast one, 6
7 McroVote? 7
8 MB. NUSSMEYER Maria, do you have it? 8
9 CHA RVAN KLUTZ:  Vé'|| do a quick nmotion. So 9
10 you'reright. | did conbine the other two. 10
11 I'd make a notion that we approve the 11
12 application submtted for approval of the Mcrovote | 12
13 direct record el ectronic voting systemInfinity 13
14 EBEVB4.4-IN EMB 4.3A EMS 4.1, EMB 4-0B Engineering | 14
15 Change O ders 136, 137. 15
16 MR CQLAYT(R M. Chairman, not to pretend ny |16
17 name is Roberts, but do we need to withdraw the 17
18 notion to adjourn before this motion is nade? |f 18
19 so, I'll withdraw ny second. 19
20 CHARVAN KLUTZ: | don't think we need a 20
21 notion to pull it out, but I wll wthdraw ny 21
22 notion to adjourn. 22
23 | amnow going to make another notion, and | 23
24  nove to approve the application subnitted for 24
25 approval regarding McroVote direct record 25
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1 electronic voting systeminfinity EMS 4.4-1N 1 STATE OF | NDI ANA
2 EM5 4-3A EMB 4.1, EMS 4-0B Engineering Change 2 CONTY OF HAM LTCN
3 Oders 136, 137 as conplying with Indiana | aw and 3 |, Mria W Collier, a Notary Public in and
4 I ndi ana E ection Conmissi on Advi sory 4 for said county and state, do hereby certify that the
5 Q)i nion 2022-08, as appl i cabl e. 5 foregoing public session was taken at the tinme and
6 M CQAYTCR I'll second. 6 place heretofore nmentioned between 1: 00 p.m and
7 CHA RVAN KLUTZ: Al in favor? roLsspemy
8 VI CE CHAl RVAN OVERHOLT: Aye. 8 That said public session was taken down i‘n ‘
o e AR ae o ™
10 MS. LAVEON  Aye. c ' _ _
) X . 11 transcript is a true record of the public session.
1 CHN H\/N\l _KLUTZ: Motion carries. Appreciate 12 I'N WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny
12 the clarification. Vé now have a cl ean record. 13 hand and affixed ny notarial seal this 30th day of
ii X f'NR|K”\Gf Can we confirmwe have a vote on 14 August, 2023.
the final one from-- )
15 CHARVN KLUTZ:  That's what ve just did. iz Woa, UdCow
16 M KNG Al right. 17 S
17 CHAI RVMAN KLUTZ: | amnow going to make a 18 e
18 nmotion to adjourn. 19
19 s there a second? 20
20 MR CLAYTCR  Second. 21 M Conmission expires:
21 CHAI RVMAN KLUTZ:  1'mgoing to offer time for Decenber 5, 2024
22 discussion. 22
23 No discussion. Al in favor. 23 Job No. 183263
24 VI CE GHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye. 24
25 MR CAYTCR Aye. 25
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      1          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Meeting of the Indiana



      2     Election Commission is called to order.  For



      3     purposes of the record, I will note the following



      4     members of the Commission are present:  Myself,



      5     Zach Klutz, designated as proxy for Chairman Paul



      6     Okeson; Vice Chairman Suzannah Wilson Overholt to



      7     my left; Michael Claytor, to my left, designated as



      8     proxy for Commission Member Karen Celestino-



      9     Horseman; and to my right, the honorable Connie



     10     Lawson, designated as proxy for Commission Member



     11     Litany Pyle.



     12          Also in attendance are Indiana Election



     13     Division staff:  Co-Director Brad King and



     14     Co-Director Angie Nussmeyer, Co-General Counsels



     15     Matthew Kochevar and Valerie Warycha.



     16          Our court reporter today is Maria W. Collier



     17     from Stewart Richardson Deposition Services.



     18          Just a housekeeping item, I want to advise the



     19     Commission members and those present that we will



     20     need to plan to stop our Commission business no



     21     later than 2:30 p.m. today.



     22          Next item on the agenda is documentation of



     23     compliance with Open Door Law.  I would request the



     24     co-directors confirm that the Commission meeting



     25     has been properly noticed as required by Open Door
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      1     Law.



      2          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, on behalf of myself



      3     and Co-Director Nussmeyer, we certify that notice



      4     of this meeting was properly given in accordance



      5     with Indiana's Open Door Law.



      6          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you, Brad.



      7          The next item on the agenda is the approval of



      8     our August 11, 2023, Commission minutes.  I



      9     recognize the co-directors to present the minutes



     10     of the August 11, 2023, meeting.



     11          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



     12     Commission, on behalf of myself and Co-Director



     13     Nussmeyer, we have reviewed the minutes and



     14     recommend them to the Commission for your approval.



     15          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Accept a motion to approve.



     16          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  So moved.



     17          MS. LAWSON:  I'll second.



     18          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Hearing a second, all in



     19     favor say "Aye."



     20          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



     22          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Opposed.



     24          The "ayes" have it and the motion to approve



     25     minutes is adopted.
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      1          Is there consent from the Commission members



      2     for the Election Division staff to use our



      3     signature stamps for any documents approved by the



      4     Commission today?



      5          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Consent.



      6          MR. CLAYTOR:  Consent.



      7          MS. LAWSON:  Consent.



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Okay.  Next item on the



      9     agenda is the adoption of campaign finance orders.



     10     I recognize the co-directors to present the



     11     campaign finance orders 2023-200 through 421



     12     reflecting the actions taken by the Commission at



     13     the August 11, 2023, meeting.



     14          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



     15     Commission, on behalf of myself and Co-Director



     16     Nussmeyer, with thanks for our very diligent



     17     campaign finance staff members, Abbey Taylor and



     18     Michelle Thompson, who prepared these orders in the



     19     week interval since the meeting at which the



     20     Commission made its findings, we present these to



     21     you and recommend them for your approval.



     22          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     23          Is there a motion to adopt campaign finance



     24     orders as presented?



     25          MR. CLAYTOR:  So moved.
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      1          MS. LAWSON:  Second.



      2          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Hearing a motion and a



      3     second, is there any discussion?



      4          Hearing none, all in favor say "Aye."



      5          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      6          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



      7          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Opposed "Nay."



      9          The motion carries.



     10          The next item on the agenda is the



     11     administration of oath.  Any person who plans to



     12     testify at today's meeting on any matter, please



     13     stand if you're able to and respond "I do" upon the



     14     reading of the oath.  And I recognize Matthew



     15     Kochevar to administer the oath.



     16          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Please raise your right hand.



     17     Please say "I do" after recitation of the oath.



     18          Do you solemnly swear or affirm, under the



     19     penalties of perjury, that the testimony you are



     20     about to give to the Indiana Election Commission is



     21     the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the



     22     truth?  Please say "I do."



     23          ALL:  I do.



     24          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Okay.  The next item on our



     25     agenda is consideration of applications for
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      1     recertification of previously certified voting



      2     systems.  Before we move to formally consider the



      3     applications for approval of new versions of



      4     previously certified voting systems and engineering



      5     change orders currently on our agenda today, I



      6     would state for the record the Commission will



      7     offer the opportunity for public comment regarding



      8     each application for certification of a new version



      9     of the previously certified voting systems or



     10     engineering change orders that will be considered



     11     by our Commission today.



     12          I would ask any person making a comment to



     13     assist our court reporter by identifying themselves



     14     and spelling their names for the record, and I



     15     remind everyone that no one should be speaking at



     16     the same time as another person who has already



     17     been recognized on the floor.



     18          Due to our time constraints today, I would



     19     also request that comments or presentations be kept



     20     to 5 minutes or less.



     21          Further, any person who wishes to present



     22     documents or other evidence to the Commission must



     23     provide that material to Valerie Warycha, who is



     24     sitting to my right, to be preserved for the



     25     record, unless you have already submitted those to
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      1     the Commission.



      2          Finally, in terms of procedure, the public



      3     will have an opportunity to offer comments



      4     following the presentation of each item by the



      5     Voting Systems Technical Oversight Program, VSTOP,



      6     and their representatives.



      7          With that, let's move to our first election



      8     system certification, and that is the certification



      9     of Election Systems & Software optical scan ballot



     10     card voting system EVS 6.3.0.0.



     11          I now recognize the VSTOP staff to present its



     12     report with respect to this system and to confirm



     13     that this voting system has passed the testing



     14     conducted by VSTOP and all testing laboratories,



     15     and confirm that the system complies with Indiana



     16     law and with IEC Advisory Opinion 2022-08, if



     17     applicable.



     18          Before we begin with the report, I would ask



     19     that each person here on behalf of VSTOP please



     20     introduce themselves.



     21          MR. CHATOT:  Thank you, Commissioner.  My name



     22     is Marc Chatot, M-a-r-c, C-h-a-t-o-t.  I am the



     23     interim project manager, program manager of VSTOP



     24     and the election system certification specialist.



     25          DR. KINSELLA:  My name is Chad Kinsella,
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      1     co-director of VSTOP.



      2          MR. CHATOT:  I will begin by reading our



      3     recommendation for EVS 6.3.0.0.  The EVS 6.3.0.0 is



      4     a paper-based end-to-end election management



      5     system, or EMS, that supports jurisdictions'



      6     election needs by creating and maintaining a



      7     central election database, formatting and printing



      8     ballots, programming election equipment, and



      9     collecting and reporting results.  This system was



     10     certified by the U.S. Election Assistance



     11     Commission on November 17, 2022, and is compliant



     12     with the Voluntary Voting System Guidelines,



     13     VVSG 1.0.  Changes and major features being



     14     introduced by this voting system are the DS300 poll



     15     place scanner and tabulator, the DS950 precinct



     16     scanner, and several upgrades to security.



     17          The DS950 will eventually replace the DS850 as



     18     internal parts for the DS850 go end-of-life in



     19     their production cycle.  The DS950 will use all new



     20     internal parts allowing for greater performance and



     21     longevity.  A security and shipping improvement for



     22     the DS950 is flush security tag recesses on the



     23     cabinet, preventing snags and inadvertent security



     24     seal breaks during travel.  EVS 6.3.0.0 introduces



     25     standard firmware for all devices and a new
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      1     Linux OS for the DS200.  An upgraded suite of flash



      2     drives is used in EVS 6.3.0.0, including the



      3     introduction of YubiKeys, a physical two-factor



      4     authentication method required to access the EMS.



      5          Findings and limitations:  The DS200 and DS300



      6     scanners are produced without modem or network



      7     hardware and are incapable of connecting to the



      8     Internet.  DS300 tabulators provide improvements to



      9     scanning and printing speeds compared to the DS200.



     10     ElectionWare is individually licensed and can be



     11     configured to only support equipment that is



     12     approved for use in Indiana.  EVS 6.3.0.0



     13     introduces the YubiKey, a physical two-factor



     14     authentication for accessing the EMS, adding



     15     another layer of security.



     16          There are no changes to accessibility in the



     17     EVS 6.3.0.0 system from previously certified



     18     versions.  ES&S demonstrated their EMS's



     19     adjudication capability to the VSTOP team during



     20     field-testing.  VSTOP determined the adjudication



     21     capabilities conform with Indiana law under



     22     IC 3-11-15-13.8.  ES&S demonstrated their EMS's



     23     adjudication capability to the VSTOP team during



     24     field-testing.  VSTOP determined the adjudication



     25     capabilities conform with Indiana law under
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      1     IC 3-11-15-13.8.



      2          VSTOP field test:  Before the VSTOP field



      3     test, VSTOP reviewed the VSTL reports submitted by



      4     Pro V&V.  This voting system underwent



      5     field-testing at Ball State University from



      6     May 15th through the 18th of 2023 by the VSTOP



      7     team.  The field test included software hash



      8     verification of all required elements of the



      9     Indiana statutes regarding voting systems as well



     10     as an ADA compliance evaluation.  Mock elections,



     11     including the IED-approved test case scenarios for



     12     straight party voting, were conducted as part of



     13     the field test for this voting system.



     14          Recommendation:  On the basis of VSTOP's



     15     review and evaluation, we find that the voting



     16     system referenced herein, and with the Scope of



     17     Certification, meets all the requirements of the



     18     Indiana Code for use in the state of Indiana.  This



     19     finding includes compliance with legal requirements



     20     for voters with disabilities.  VSTOP recommends



     21     approval of EVS 6.3.0.0.



     22          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     23          For purposes of just commencing the Commission



     24     discussion on this matter, I move to approve the



     25     application submitted for approval of this election
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      1     system as complying with Indiana law and Indiana



      2     Election Commission Advisory Opinion 2022-08, as



      3     applicable.



      4          Is there a second?



      5          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Second.



      6          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  All in favor.



      7          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      8          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



      9          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     10          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  That's just for



     11     discussion, right?



     12          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Right.  This is for purposes



     13     of discussion.



     14          So now we'll ask if there's any representative



     15     from the vendor that would like to talk following



     16     the report.



     17          MR. MANGANARO:  My name is Mark Manganaro,



     18     M-a-n-g-a-n-a-r-o.  I'm the Indiana state



     19     certification manager.  I just basically --



     20          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Sir, can you just take the



     21     oath real quick for us.



     22          MR. MANGANARO:  Oh, sure.



     23          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thanks.



     24          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Just raise your right hand.



     25     Say "I do" after recitation of the oath.
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      1          Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the



      2     testimony you are about to give to the Indiana



      3     Election Commission is the truth, the whole truth,



      4     and nothing but the truth?  Please say "I do."



      5          MR. MANGANARO:  I do.



      6          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Thank you.



      7          MR. MANGANARO:  And, again, Mark Manganaro



      8     with Election Systems & Software.  Just wanted to



      9     thank the VSTOP team.  I know they had quite a few



     10     system testing to do, poll books, ECOs.  Marc did



     11     an outstanding job getting the certification done



     12     in a timely manner.  I'm here today if you guys



     13     have any other questions regarding the system that



     14     VSTOP can't address.  Thank you.



     15          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     16          At this time I'll recognize anyone from the



     17     public that would like to speak.



     18          MR. LINN:  I'd like to speak.



     19          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  We just need you to take the



     20     oath, sir.



     21          MR. LINN:  Sure.



     22          MR. KOCHEVAR:  I'm going to ask, through the



     23     Chair, if there's anyone else in the audience who



     24     also has any inclination to speak, it would be



     25     better to have you sworn right now so we don't have
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      1     to keep pausing.  So if you're thinking about



      2     speaking at any point, if you want to stand up and



      3     raise your right hand.



      4          Sir, raise your right hand as well.  Say "I



      5     do" after recitation of the oath.



      6          Do you solemnly swear or affirm, under the



      7     penalties of perjury, that the testimony you are



      8     about to give to the Indiana Election Commission is



      9     the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the



     10     truth?  Please say "I do."



     11          ALL:  I do.



     12          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Thank you.



     13          MR. LINN:  I just have several points I'd like



     14     to make.



     15          THE REPORTER:  Sir, could you state your name



     16     and spell it for me, please.



     17          MR. LINN:  Yes.  My name is D. Edward,



     18     E-d-w-a-r-d, Linn, L-i-n-n, and I just have several



     19     remarks I'd like to make.



     20          I don't know if all these changes to the DS200



     21     scanner were addressed, but this is going back



     22     several years ago, and this is a web article from



     23     VentureBeat, "Optical scanning machines are



     24     susceptible to miscounting U.S. voter ballots."



     25     And looking at this, there's several things that
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      1     this device does under the cover of darkness, and I



      2     don't think that's a good thing.



      3          We want transparent elections.  And I know you



      4     guys at Ball State think you do a really good job,



      5     and you probably do the best job you possibly can,



      6     and I'm not refuting anything you just said.  All



      7     I'm saying is, these are black boxes, and they run



      8     by algorithms, and algorithms can be manipulated.



      9     And they can be manipulated by somebody coming in



     10     and putting a device into the machine and hacking



     11     the machine.



     12          If you think that's not possible, we just had



     13     a number of different hacks to our system.  I just



     14     had my information hacked at the very secure



     15     banking system, and they gave me two free years of



     16     credit monitoring.  So this has happened to me when



     17     I was at Purdue University.  It was hacked; my



     18     social security and personal information was



     19     hacked.  So people that say these are the most



     20     secure elections in history, all that is bunk, in



     21     my opinion.  Okay?



     22          Now, can I give you irrefutable evidence of



     23     that?  No.  But what I'm saying is the citizens are



     24     not very pleased with the way the elections are



     25     being done.  We'd like to go back to paper ballots
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      1     the way they used to be done.  We'd like to have



      2     these documents sealed, not scanned, because



      3     scanning these documents, like they've shown in



      4     Georgia, they can be deleted.  So we want the real



      5     ballots.  We don't want virtual ballots.  We want



      6     real ballots, and we want ballots that are scanned



      7     by human eyes, not by machines that can be rigged



      8     or algorithms changed under the cover of darkness



      9     to give fraudulent results.



     10          You may say, well, that's not possible, but it



     11     is possible because these people say it is.



     12     Anytime you have a computer, it can be hacked.



     13     Anytime you have a computer, the algorithms can be



     14     changed.  That's a fact.  In my opinion, there's no



     15     question.  Okay?



     16          And so I've got several documents here I'd



     17     like to give you.  One is the VentureBeat article



     18     having to do with the fact that these are



     19     susceptible in this county.  And I don't know if



     20     all these changes have been done on the machine,



     21     but there is one thing that's really, to me, very



     22     concerning, and that is the fact that they said



     23     that these machines aren't capable of being hacked



     24     to the point where an individual would attain



     25     administrative control over the machine, which
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      1     means they can change anything.  They can change



      2     anything on the machine software-wise, what have



      3     you.  They can delete votes.  They can do whatever



      4     they want.



      5          Now, here, in fact, there's a documentation



      6     from Georgia where it says that a total of



      7     1.7 million images of the ballots were deleted.



      8     And so I put that in the record as well.



      9     1.7 million ballot images were destroyed.



     10          You say, well, they can just go and take a



     11     look at the real ballots.  Well, the thing about it



     12     is, in Georgia they said no, you can't do that,



     13     that's private information.  And we've had that



     14     situation happen here in Indiana where we've had



     15     voter integrity groups saying we want to take a



     16     look at the cast vote records.  Not only were they



     17     stopped at the election board level, they were also



     18     stopped at the state legislature level because they



     19     said these cast vote records were confidential



     20     information.  In fact, other states find that



     21     they're not --



     22          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  You have 30 seconds.



     23          MR. LINN:  -- because there's no identifying



     24     information in those cast vote records that would



     25     make them confidential.  It's a hoax, in my
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      1     opinion, to do that.



      2          We need transparent elections.  We don't need



      3     elections done under the cover of darkness.  We



      4     don't need elections done under proprietary



      5     software.  We want things done in the open, under



      6     the clear transparent daylight, not under the cover



      7     of darknesses into a black box.



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you, sir.



      9          MR. LINN:  Thank you.  I yield my time.



     10          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Anyone else to speak on this?



     11          Yes, ma'am.  Please state your name.



     12          MS. STAMM:  My name is Jennifer Stamm,



     13     S-t-a-m-m, like Mary.  Thank you for the



     14     opportunity.  I didn't know I was going to be here.



     15     I just found out about the meeting earlier today.



     16     I don't know if I'll be as eloquent as the



     17     gentleman before me, so I appreciate your time.



     18          I am simply here just as a representative of a



     19     lot of people that are like myself, that are very



     20     distrusting of how we've been doing it, the



     21     machines.  I too want paper ballots.  I too see



     22     that there is a pathway to it.  I too see that it



     23     would take -- we even know how many volunteers it



     24     would take to actually get that done.  I am part of



     25     Indiana First Action group.  The canvassing that
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      1     was done through the voter rolls that we obtained



      2     through our own Secretary of State revealed some



      3     very astonishing and very disturbing information



      4     about the history of our elections.  Particularly



      5     this one was information from the 2020 election.



      6          I don't know if I'm allowed to ask a question,



      7     but I will, because it seems like absolute common



      8     sense that we would know, with the technology that



      9     we have today, that it is very easily hackable.  We



     10     see it all the time in the news.  If you actually



     11     look on a search engine that's outside of Google,



     12     you will find all kinds of information that



     13     actually refutes what a lot of the experts on the



     14     television are telling us.  We're not stupid.  We



     15     know.  And we the people are kind of tired of not



     16     feeling like we're being heard by the people that



     17     are in the seats making these decisions, so I say



     18     this respectfully.



     19          Do any of you people believe -- and I say this



     20     respectfully -- that our systems can be hacked,



     21     that there is an opportunity for nefarious



     22     activities and that they're not absolutely as safe



     23     and sound as we've been promised over the years?



     24     Because I know that's not true, and I would hate to



     25     believe that I'm sitting here in a roomful of
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      1     professionals that would actually say no, you're



      2     wrong, they are safe and secure, there's absolutely



      3     no way that anything can happen to any of your



      4     votes.  Because, to me, that's just an ignorant



      5     answer, and I don't mean any disrespect by it.



      6          But I just do want to say that I represent a



      7     lot of people.  There are thousands and thousands



      8     and thousands and thousands of people that feel



      9     like I do but have no idea where the meetings are,



     10     how to express an opinion.  I'm not as eloquent as



     11     I would like to be.  There was a lot of code.



     12     There was a lot of .06.3.0 and a lot of acronyms



     13     and things that probably are just a little bit over



     14     my head as far as that.  But one thing I will say I



     15     do understand is that systems are hackable.  And



     16     what we saw in the 2020 elections, the truth is out



     17     there.  It's being very much hid from us by



     18     mainstream media, and we all know that.  Anybody



     19     with any common sense recognizes that.  They were



     20     not safe and secure, they are not safe and secure,



     21     and paper ballots is what we want.



     22          So I just wanted you all to hear that I am one



     23     opinion of many.  Whether that goes anywhere or



     24     not, I just wanted to be heard, and I thank you for



     25     your time.
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      1          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



      2          MS. STAMM:  Thank you.



      3          MS. COTTON:  Hi there.  My name is Cindy



      4     Cotton, C-i-n-d-y, C-o-t-t-o-n, as in Nancy.  I do



      5     have a handout for everybody.  Okay?  Just forgive



      6     me.  I've got to read from the bottom of it.  I



      7     tried -- it's the very last paragraph.  I got very



      8     fortunate.  I am in a graduate study program in the



      9     state of Indiana, phenomenal to our city.  I just



     10     happened to end this session.  So up at the top is



     11     your reference.  All of that information is the



     12     guys that are super smart that wrote the textbook.



     13     It just so happened to be in my information systems



     14     class, so I just happened to take note of it.



     15          It starts out with an impossibility of



     16     100 percent security, because these guys wrote



     17     textbooks, they put some time and effort.  Let's go



     18     to the last paragraph.  Back in '95 -- so it's not



     19     a new thing -- L. Dain Gary, former manager of the



     20     U.S. Computer Emergency Response Team, CERT, in



     21     Pittsburgh, appeared on an episode of 60 Minutes



     22     and let the public in on an unpleasant...  You



     23     cannot make a computer secure.  You can reduce the



     24     risk, but you can't guarantee the security.



     25     Because of the futility of seeking 100 percent
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      1     security, many companies take out insurance



      2     policies to mitigate the financial impacts of a



      3     breach.  So if it were secure, you wouldn't be



      4     getting an insurance policy.  It is important to



      5     also consider the so-called Poulsen's law that



      6     states that information is secure when it costs



      7     more to get it than it's worth.  The role of



      8     management is to work with IT functions to make it



      9     harder to break in than it is worth.



     10          Listen, we all have stupendous intentions, but



     11     security costs, and governments across the country,



     12     you guys are doing the absolute best you can, but



     13     it costs hundreds of millions of dollars.  You've



     14     got multinational companies worth trillions that



     15     cannot secure their systems.



     16          Finally, I want you guys to also have this



     17     from the same textbook.  Forgive me.  I don't have



     18     the exact page on these, but I can get them.  While



     19     there's not been any evidence of hacking -- so back



     20     in 2017, they did a little kind of experiment.



     21     While there's not been any evidence of hackers



     22     tampering with voting results in the United States,



     23     attendees at a 2017 black hat hacker -- so a black



     24     hat, there's all kind of terms; they get paid to



     25     kind of try to hack into something; they're just
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      1     good folks with computers -- conference was invited



      2     to try to break into 30 voting machines



      3     representing several types in popular use in the



      4     2016 election.  The result of the competition was



      5     not encouraging, as the hackers broke into all the



      6     machines in under two hours.  One machine had an



      7     unpatched Windows XP vulnerability that had been



      8     known for 14 years.  Governmental agencies in the



      9     U.S. need to catch up on voting security.



     10          Guys, we all have phenomenal intentions.  I



     11     don't deny that.  I know you guys want what we



     12     want.  It's extremely expensive.  You've got to



     13     have technical people that you pay a ton of money,



     14     and every year it will go up and up and up.  If we



     15     have a system perhaps out there and they are



     16     implementing in the United States everywhere --



     17     it's happening every day as the days tick by --



     18     that can save you guys money and do just as good a



     19     job, if not better, let's consider it.  I'm not



     20     saying -- you can't stop everything in a second and



     21     change everything in a second.  That's not what I'm



     22     asking.  I'm asking you to think about it, ponder



     23     it, and maybe, as the days go by, we can start



     24     moving in that direction.  Thank you.



     25          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.
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      1          Any further comment on this matter for this



      2     voting system?



      3          MR. KOCHEVAR:  I have to swear you in.  Just



      4     raise your right hand.  Say "I do" after recitation



      5     of the oath.



      6          Do you solemnly swear or affirm, under the



      7     penalties of perjury, that the testimony you are



      8     about to give to the Indiana Election Commission is



      9     the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the



     10     truth?



     11          MS. FOX:  So help me God, I affirm.



     12          MR. KOCHEVAR:  Thank you.



     13          MS. FOX:  You want me to sign in?



     14          MS. WARYCHA:  Yes, please.



     15          MS. FOX:  My name is Rochelle Fox, and I --



     16          THE REPORTER:  Could you spell it, please.



     17          MS. FOX:  R-o-c-h-e-l-l-e, F-o-x.  And I know



     18     these ladies, and I know exactly what they're



     19     talking about.  It kind of upset me when I got the



     20     notice about the optical scan mainly because I



     21     don't know where that scan ends up.  I know where



     22     it begins, but I have no idea of where it's going.



     23          And the reason why I'm saying that is because



     24     I am one of the victims of Konnech.  I don't know



     25     if you know about Konnech or not.  It's -- what is
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      1     it?  It works with elections, and it's out -- it



      2     comes from California, and they went all around the



      3     country to -- I don't know -- connect somehow.  But



      4     what they did do without telling us was they took



      5     our private information.  They took our private



      6     information in three different counties here in



      7     Indiana for the poll workers.  When I registered



      8     innocently to work as a poll worker, they were



      9     taking my information, which went from Konnech to



     10     California to China.



     11          So if they can do that with me typing my



     12     information in, I can't even begin to imagine what



     13     they'd do with an eye scan.  They already have my



     14     information.  I don't know how to get it back.  I



     15     would like to do a class-action suit with other



     16     people and sue Konnech, but it won't get my



     17     information returned to me.  It's out there.  I've



     18     gotten phone calls -- and this is the honest to God



     19     truth -- from places on the other side of the



     20     world.  They don't talk to me.  They just call me.



     21     I've gotten phone calls with Chinese or some kind



     22     of writing on the number.  Just crazy.  And I don't



     23     know who is trying to communicate with me, if



     24     they're listening in on me or what.  Would you all



     25     like to live like that, knowing that some stranger
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      1     out there has all your personal information?



      2          You have put your social security number in



      3     there when you sign up to be a poll worker, so the



      4     social security number tells you everything.  So



      5     they know everything about me.  I walk around every



      6     day wondering who is looking at me.  That's not a



      7     good way to be free in a country that gives us the



      8     right to have our liberty.  I mean, it's just



      9     crazy.  And I know, and these ladies know too, we



     10     know it was done, what, in Johnson County, Lake



     11     County, and Marion County.



     12          MR. LINN:  Allen County as well.



     13          MS. FOX:  Yeah.  They chose the largest



     14     counties so they could -- I don't know what they



     15     want with our information, but I know they do have



     16     it.  And that's why I will never work the polls



     17     again.  I will volunteer and be a watcher, but I'm



     18     never working them again, because this was done in



     19     2020.  I didn't find out until this year, and I



     20     worked the 2022 election as a poll worker.  So can



     21     you imagine that?  I mean, I don't feel comfortable



     22     with that.



     23          And, like I said, you're scanning my eye,



     24     which means that you're getting my medical



     25     information.  You already have enough from Konnech,
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      1     so what more can you ask from me?  I'm just one



      2     person here in this United States, but who knows



      3     how much that ended up connecting me to other



      4     people, to other people in other places that I go



      5     and things that I do.  I just so happen to be, like



      6     some of the people here, a delegate in Marion



      7     County.  So that's not a safe place to be, and I



      8     don't trust using much of the Internet anymore



      9     because of that.



     10          Whereas, in contrast to that, a paper ballot



     11     like we're really pushing is what?  It has a



     12     watermark on it.  You verify your ID in front of a



     13     person with your signature, and, I mean, they can



     14     see your face.  Unless you're a clone, they know



     15     exactly who you are.  And then you sit down at the



     16     end of the day like we've done -- that's another



     17     thing I thought about too.  Did you guys know that,



     18     in order to work the polls, you have to be there at



     19     4:30 in the morning?  Did you know you get off at,



     20     like, 8:00 at night?  That's one day, which is the



     21     longest day of the year for me really, and at the



     22     end of the day, there's no guarantee that what



     23     we've done has been right because we don't know



     24     which ballots are correct and which aren't because



     25     they always have -- what do you call it? --

�



                                                           29



      1     provisional ballots.



      2          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  You have 30 seconds,



      3     Mrs. Fox.



      4          MS. FOX:  Okay.  I'm sorry.  I didn't know



      5     about the time limit.



      6          But anyway, I am impeding -- not impeding.  I



      7     just ask that you please reconsider what you're



      8     thinking about.  We all love our privacy, and once



      9     we start scanning stuff across the Internet, it's



     10     bad enough with the data --



     11          (Timer)



     12          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     13          MS. FOX:  You're welcome.



     14          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Any further comment?



     15          MR. LINN:  I have one more comment, if



     16     possible.



     17          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  You've already used your



     18     5 minutes, sir.



     19          MR. LINN:  I used all 5 minutes?



     20          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  You did.  Thank you.



     21          With that, is there any further discussion by



     22     the Commission members?



     23          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Well, I wanted to



     24     clarify that, when we're talking optical scanning,



     25     that we're not talking about any kind of retinal
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      1     scanning.



      2          MR. CHATOT:  Correct.



      3          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Optical means it's



      4     the manner in which the machine scans the ballots.



      5     It has nothing to do with scanning anyone's eyeball



      6     in any way, shape, or form.



      7          MR. CHATOT:  Right.  It takes an image of both



      8     sides of the ballot.



      9          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Right.  And I



     10     respectfully disagree with the assessment of our



     11     election systems, but that's my only comment.



     12          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  My comment would be just



     13     directed to the comments, the public comment we



     14     heard.  I guess what we're charged with today is to



     15     determine whether the systems have been tested to



     16     ensure that they're compliant with existing law,



     17     not to determine whether we should use -- change



     18     the law to determine what we have now and go to



     19     paper ballots.



     20          So, for me, if we have a professional



     21     organization that's trained and experienced in



     22     testing machines to ensure compliance with law and



     23     any applicable advisory opinion and they say it is,



     24     I feel a duty to approve that.  The change of



     25     election systems from paper ballot to what we have
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      1     now is really an argument to a different body, in



      2     my opinion.  I'm not saying I agree or I disagree



      3     with you, and I appreciate you coming and letting



      4     us know how you feel.  I just don't feel like I can



      5     address what you're asking for.



      6          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Who can?



      7          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  The public comment is closed



      8     for this one.



      9          So I just wanted to let you know we do



     10     appreciate your comments; I just don't feel like



     11     we're the body who could provide you any remedy.



     12          MS. LAWSON:  I might just add as well that I



     13     believe VSTOP mentioned that the scanners -- now,



     14     these scanners are scanning the paper ballots and



     15     they are not connected to the Internet.



     16          MR. CHATOT:  That is correct.



     17          MS. LAWSON:  And that's exactly what I heard.



     18          MR. CHATOT:  That is correct.  They have no



     19     capability.



     20          MS. LAWSON:  They're not scanning the eye in



     21     any way, shape, or form.



     22          MR. CHATOT:  Correct.



     23          MS. LAWSON:  And those ballots, from



     24     experience, I know those ballots are then available



     25     for a recount or an audit, those actual paper
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      1     ballots.



      2          MR. CHATOT:  Yes.  VSTOP also conducts



      3     postelection audits.



      4          MS. LAWSON:  And I just might add one more



      5     thing for you all to think about, because I do



      6     appreciate your remarks as well.  I served as a



      7     county clerk for eight years, and the one time we



      8     had problems with any election results is when some



      9     poll workers lost some paper ballots.



     10     Intentionally?  Possibly.  But that was the one



     11     time as a county clerk that I had any issues with



     12     any election results was people losing paper



     13     ballots.  So --



     14          UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  So I've got a question



     15     now.



     16          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  The public hearing is closed



     17     for this particular matter.



     18          Is there any further discussion?



     19          Hearing none, I will ask all in favor of the



     20     motion on the floor say "Aye."



     21          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     22          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



     23          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     24          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Opposed "Nay."



     25          The "ayes" have it, and the motion to
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      1     recertify this voting system for the term specified



      2     by statute, subject to any limitations set forth in



      3     the VSTOP report or imposed by the Commission, is



      4     adopted.



      5          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  To clarify, this was



      6     a new certification, not a recertification?



      7          MS. NUSSMEYER:  It's a new system.



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Did I say recertification?



      9     I'm sorry.



     10          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Yes.



     11          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Okay.  Move to the next.



     12     Next matter before the Commission is Unisyn



     13     OpenElect optical scan voting system Engineering



     14     Change Order 17050.



     15          I now recognize the VSTOP staff to present its



     16     report and confirm that the engineering change



     17     order for this previously approved voting system



     18     has passed the testing conducted by VSTOP and all



     19     testing laboratories, and confirm that the system



     20     complies with Indiana law and with IEC Advisory



     21     Opinion 2022-08, if applicable.



     22          MR. CHATOT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



     23          ECO 17050 applies to voting system



     24     OpenElect 2.2.1, and it affects the component of



     25     the OpenElect optical scan, also called OVO.
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      1     Description of change is that this change prevents



      2     a concurrent closed process on the OVO.  It was



      3     observed that when "Close" cards are used to



      4     initiate the close session process on the OVO that



      5     when the "Close" card was returned to the operator,



      6     the scanner was not disabled.  This opened the



      7     possibility for the "Close" card to be entered a



      8     second time and the potential of starting a second



      9     close process.



     10          Depending on the timing of these processes, if



     11     they occur concurrently, as opposed to



     12     sequentially, the close session process will



     13     generate a report which shows doubled vote counts



     14     and produces a tally.xml file that cannot be



     15     uploaded into the central tabulation system.  This



     16     change will disable the scanner after the "Close"



     17     card is returned, preventing the opportunity of



     18     creating a second close session process.  OpenElect



     19     will move from Version 2.2 to 2.2.1, and the new



     20     software version for the OVO will be 2.2.1.



     21          Members of the VSTOP team have reviewed the



     22     ECO 17050, including the supporting documents and



     23     Voting System Testing Laboratory reports.  VSTOP



     24     finds the ECO complies with the requirements for



     25     de minimis changes to hardware components.  The ECO
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      1     only applies to the specific Unisyn OpenElect



      2     voting system notated in the table above.  Unisyn



      3     Voting Solutions and OpenElect are EAC certified,



      4     and the ECO was approved by the EAC.



      5          With this ECO, OpenElect will move from 2.2 to



      6     2.2.1, and the new software version for OVO will be



      7     2.2.1.  VSTOP recommends approval of ECO 17050.



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Okay.  For purposes of



      9     commencing Commission discussion on this matter, I



     10     move to approve the application submitted for



     11     approval of this engineering change order as



     12     complying with Indiana law and Indiana Election



     13     Commission Advisory Opinion 2022-08, if applicable.



     14          Is there a second?



     15          MR. CLAYTOR:  Second.



     16          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  With that, I will ask if



     17     there's any representative of the vendor to have



     18     any comments.



     19          MS. BUCHANAN:  Janet Buchanan,



     20     B-u-c-h-a-n-a-n, RBM.  No additional comments.



     21     Thank you.



     22          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     23          Any member of the public with respect to this



     24     one?



     25          Any further discussion by the Commission?
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      1          Hearing none, I will ask for a vote on the



      2     pending motion.  All in favor say "Aye."



      3          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      4          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



      5          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



      6          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Opposed "Nay."



      7          The "ayes" have it.



      8          Okay.  Next item is Unisyn OpenElect optical



      9     scan voting system 2.2.2 Engineering Change Orders



     10     1025, 1026, 1027, 3476, and 17059.



     11          I again recognize the VSTOP staff to present



     12     the report and confirm that the five engineering



     13     change orders for this previously approved voting



     14     system, which would be designated as Version 2.2.2,



     15     have passed the testing conducted by VSTOP and all



     16     testing laboratories, and to confirm that the



     17     system complies with Indiana law and IEC Advisory



     18     Opinion 2022-08, if applicable.



     19          MR. CHATOT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



     20          I will read descriptions of each ECO and our



     21     recommendation.



     22          ECO 1025, applying to voting system



     23     OpenElect 2.2, the component is transport media.



     24     ECO 1025 adds a new 4 GB USB flash drive, Model



     25     3SE-4GB, as a replacement for the current 1 GB
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      1     part, Model 2SE-1GB, due to the current model no



      2     longer being commercially available for purchase.



      3     Added Innodisk Model 3SE-4GB and Vendor Part Number



      4     DEUA1-04GI61SCASB-B088.  Removed Innodisk Model



      5     2SE-1GB and Vendor Part Number DEUA1-01GI72AC1SB-



      6     B088.



      7          ECO 1026 applies to voting system



      8     OpenElect 2.2.  Component is fan for Freedom Vote



      9     Scan, or FVS.  ECO 1026 adds a new fan,



     10     Anode JZ-0001, as a replacement for the current



     11     part, Intel E97379-003, due to the current model no



     12     longer being commercially available for purchase.



     13     The fan being updated is an internal part for the



     14     Freedom Vote Scan component.



     15          ECO 1027, applying to voting system



     16     OpenElect 2.2, another fan for Freedom Vote Scan,



     17     FVS.  ECO 1027 is an update to alternate commercial



     18     off-the-shelf components, memory module and USB



     19     flash drive, due to current parts no longer being



     20     commercially available.  Both alternative



     21     components used with the Freedom Vote Scan are the



     22     same manufacturer, form, fit, and function.  Added



     23     DDR-2400 Memory Module as an alternative component



     24     for CT4G4SFS824A.



     25          ECO 3476, applying to voting system
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      1     OpenElect 2.2, component OpenElect voting optical,



      2     or OVO.  ECO 3476 is an OVO modification that



      3     addresses the possibility of inserting a ballot



      4     during the transition to jammed ballot handling on



      5     the OVO.  This introduces a potential race



      6     condition that could result in a cast ballot being



      7     returned to the user.  This proposal encompasses



      8     minor changes to six files, extending the



      9     implementation of methods to remove and restore the



     10     reference to the module that accepts ballot data in



     11     the event of a jam error code from the scanner and



     12     restores it when the jam condition is no longer



     13     active.



     14          Per Unisyn, this was originally implemented in



     15     the AbstractReaderClient.java file but was



     16     reimplemented as two methods in ReaderDriver.java,



     17     hideReadListener and restoreReadListener, so it



     18     could be used by multiple modules.  An additional



     19     flag and delay were added to ensure no data is sent



     20     from the scanner to the software while the jam is



     21     being handled.



     22          Products affected are OpenElect voting



     23     optical, OVO, Version 2.2.1.  Per Unisyn, the new



     24     software version for the OVO will now be 2.2.2.



     25          ECO 17059 applies to the OpenElect 2.2 voting
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      1     system and the Freedom Vote Scan component, or FVS.



      2     ECO 17059 replaces the plastic ballot diverter with



      3     a higher quality metal replacement.  The current



      4     ballot diverter is made from flat plastic.  The



      5     process of repeatedly adding the designated curve



      6     was not perfected; therefore, multiple vendors



      7     reported to Unisyn they were unable to reproduce it



      8     repeatedly.  To eliminate the issue, Unisyn is



      9     replacing the heat-formed ABS plastic sheet part



     10     with a drop-in replacement part requiring no



     11     additional changes to implement.  The current ABS



     12     plastic sheet part will be replaced with a bent



     13     aluminum part which is an exact match for the



     14     former plastic piece and is more easily repeated



     15     during the manufacturing process.



     16          Members of the VSTOP team have reviewed the



     17     ECOs' supporting documents and the Voting System



     18     Test Laboratory reports.  VSTOP finds these ECOs



     19     comply with the requirements for de minimis changes



     20     to hardware components.  These ECOs only apply to



     21     the specific Unisyn OpenElect 2.2 voting systems



     22     notated in the table above.  Unisyn OpenElect 2.2



     23     is Election Assistance Commission certified, and



     24     the ECOs were also approved by the EAC.



     25          VSTOP recommends approval of ECOs 1025, 1026,
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      1     1027, 3476, and 1059 updating OpenElect 2.2 to



      2     OpenElect 2.2.2.



      3          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.  Could you clarify



      4     the last.  Was it 17059?



      5          MR. CHATOT:  17059, yes.



      6          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Okay.  At this time I'll



      7     recognize any vendor representative who has any



      8     comments.



      9          Seeing none, any member of the public for



     10     additional comment?



     11          Seeing none, any further discussion by the



     12     Commission?



     13          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  No.



     14          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Seeing none, all in favor say



     15     "Aye."



     16          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     17          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



     18          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     19          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Nay?



     20          The "ayes" have it.  The motion passes.



     21          We now move to our final election system



     22     certification which is MicroVote direct record



     23     electronic voting system Infinity 4.4-IN, EMS 4-3A,



     24     EMS 4.1, EMS 4-0B Engineering Change Orders 136 and



     25     137.
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      1          I'll now recognize VSTOP to present its report



      2     and to confirm that the engineering change orders



      3     for these two versions of the previously approved



      4     voting system, which would be designated as



      5     Infinity Revision E-1 and Infinity VVPAT Revision



      6     A-1, have passed the testing conducted by VSTOP and



      7     all testing laboratories, and to confirm that the



      8     system complies with Indiana law and with Indiana



      9     Election Commission Advisory Opinion 2022-08, if



     10     applicable.



     11          MR. CHATOT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



     12          ECN 136 applies to voting systems EMS 4.4-IN,



     13     EMS 4.3-A, EMS 4.1, and EMS 4.0B.  The component



     14     affected is the Infinity Revision E1 panel and the



     15     VVPAT Revision A1.  The current Infinity,



     16     Revision E, display and smart card reader and



     17     VVPAT, Revision A, internal serial connector and



     18     capacitor on the port switching PCB are end-of-life



     19     with suppliers.  ECN 136 is a modification to



     20     replace these components with equivalent parts.



     21     The modification is compatible with all system



     22     hardware and software.  There is no form, fit, or



     23     function change.



     24          ECN 137 applies to voting systems EMS 4.4-IN,



     25     EMS 4.3-A, EMS 4.1, and EMS 4.0B.  The component is
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      1     the All-In-One Voting Station Booth.  ECN 137



      2     replaces the metal ADA RJ45 coupler housing mounted



      3     in the All-In-One Voting Station Booth with a



      4     shielded plastic RJ45 coupler housing, Part Number



      5     RJ45M25Z0-6A, to eliminate susceptibility to



      6     electrostatic disruption.  The coupler and molded



      7     mounting plate will be attached to the booth using



      8     three machine screws with a Loctite on the threads



      9     to secure the plate during transport and storage.



     10     The coupler provides a convenient way to attach a



     11     DoubleTalk text-to-speech reader or tally tape



     12     printer to the VVPAT or Infinity panel.  There is



     13     no form, fit, or function change.  ECN 137 is



     14     compatible with all system hardware and software.



     15          Members of the VSTOP team have reviewed the



     16     ECOs' supporting documents and VSTL reports.  VSTOP



     17     finds these ECOs comply with the requirements for



     18     de minimis, or minor, changes to hardware



     19     components as there is no change to form, fit, or



     20     function.  The ECOs only apply to the specific



     21     MicroVote voting systems notated in the table



     22     above.  The MicroVote EMS 4.4-IN is EAC certified,



     23     and the ECOs were approved by the EAC.



     24          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Thank you.



     25          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  And you're
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      1     recommending approval; correct?  You didn't read



      2     that last one.



      3          MR. CHATOT:  You're right.  I'm so sorry.



      4     VSTOP recommends approval for ECOs 136 and 137.



      5     Yes.



      6          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Just a little



      7     minor...



      8          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  We always like to have that



      9     on record.



     10          MR. CHATOT:  Thank you for the reminder.



     11          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  With that, I'll recognize any



     12     vendor representative who would like to speak on



     13     this matter.



     14          Seeing none, any member of the public who



     15     would like to speak on this matter?



     16          Seeing none, any further discussion by the



     17     Commission members?



     18          Hearing none, all in favor of the pending



     19     motion say "Aye."



     20          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     21          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



     22          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     23          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Opposed "Nay."



     24          The "ayes" have it, and the motion carries.



     25          The Indiana Election Commission has finished
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      1     its business for the day.  Is there a motion to



      2     adjourn?



      3          MS. LAWSON:  So moved.



      4          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Second?



      5          MR. CLAYTOR:  Second.



      6          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Hold on a second.



      7          MR. KOCHEVAR:  For Unisyn and MicroVote,



      8     technically you didn't offer a motion.  I would



      9     recommend setting for the record before we go home.



     10          MS. NUSSMEYER:  For Unisyn, I have that you



     11     did offer the motion.  It was for No. 6, which they



     12     did 6 and 7 together.  It's No. 8 I don't recall a



     13     motion being made for.  He presented them together.



     14          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  For the Unisyn OpenElect



     15     optical scan voting system Engineering Change Order



     16     17050?



     17          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  No.  I think this



     18     last one is what you're talking about.



     19          MS. NUSSMEYER:  So I have recorded a motion



     20     for 17050.  You took 17050, which is Item No. 6 on



     21     the agenda, and No. 7, those engineering change



     22     orders.  I have what is in the binder.  So No. 6 is



     23     Engineering Change Order 1050, which is the Unisyn



     24     OpenElect.  Number 7 is Unisyn Open Elect optical



     25     scan system 2.2.2 Engineering Change Orders 1025
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      1     and so forth.  I actually have -- I assumed you



      2     took those under the same motion, but for the



      3     MicroVote, this last one, those two change orders,



      4     I don't have recorded in my notes, which does not



      5     mean it did not happen, but that there's not --



      6          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  So for this last one,



      7     MicroVote?



      8          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Maria, do you have it?



      9          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  We'll do a quick motion.  So



     10     you're right.  I did combine the other two.



     11          I'd make a motion that we approve the



     12     application submitted for approval of the MicroVote



     13     direct record electronic voting system Infinity



     14     EMS 4.4-IN, EMS 4.3A, EMS 4.1, EMS 4-0B Engineering



     15     Change Orders 136, 137.



     16          MR. CLAYTOR:  Mr. Chairman, not to pretend my



     17     name is Roberts, but do we need to withdraw the



     18     motion to adjourn before this motion is made?  If



     19     so, I'll withdraw my second.



     20          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  I don't think we need a



     21     motion to pull it out, but I will withdraw my



     22     motion to adjourn.



     23          I am now going to make another motion, and I



     24     move to approve the application submitted for



     25     approval regarding MicroVote direct record
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      1     electronic voting system Infinity EMS 4.4-IN,



      2     EMS 4-3A, EMS 4.1, EMS 4-0B Engineering Change



      3     Orders 136, 137 as complying with Indiana law and



      4     Indiana Election Commission Advisory



      5     Opinion 2022-08, as applicable.



      6          MR. CLAYTOR:  I'll second.



      7          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  All in favor?



      8          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      9          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.



     10          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



     11          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Motion carries.  Appreciate



     12     the clarification.  We now have a clean record.



     13          MR. KING:  Can we confirm we have a vote on



     14     the final one from --



     15          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  That's what we just did.



     16          MR. KING:  All right.



     17          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  I am now going to make a



     18     motion to adjourn.



     19          Is there a second?



     20          MR. CLAYTOR:  Second.



     21          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  I'm going to offer time for



     22     discussion.



     23          No discussion.  All in favor.



     24          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     25          MR. CLAYTOR:  Aye.
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      1          MS. LAWSON:  Aye.



      2          CHAIRMAN KLUTZ:  Motion carries.  We're



      3     adjourned.



      4          (The Indiana Election Commission Public



      5     Session was adjourned at 1:53 p.m.)



      6
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